
 
Tony Kershaw 

Director of Law and Assurance 
 

If calling please ask for: 
 

Erica Keegan on 033 022 26050 
Email: erica.keegan@westsussex.gov.uk 
 

www.westsussex.gov.uk 
 

 
County Hall  
Chichester 

West Sussex  
PO19 1RQ 

Switchboard  
Tel no (01243) 777100 

 

 

29 September 2021 

West Sussex Health and Wellbeing Board 

A virtual meeting of the Committee will be held at 10.30 am on Thursday, 7 
October 2021. 

 
Note: In response to the continuing public health measures, this meeting will be 

held virtually with members in remote attendance. Public access is via webcasting. 
 

The meeting will be available to watch live via the Internet at this 
address: 

 

      http://www.westsussex.public-i.tv/core/portal/home 
 

Tony Kershaw 
Director of Law and Assurance 

 

 Agenda 
 

10.30 am 1.   Chairman's Welcome  
 

10.35 am 2.   Declaration of Interests  
 

  Members and officers must declare any pecuniary or personal 

interest in any business on the agenda.  They should also make 
declarations at any stage such an interest becomes apparent 
during the meeting. Consideration should be given to leaving 

the meeting if the nature of the interest warrants it; if in doubt 
contact Democratic Services before the meeting. 

 
10.40 am 3.   Urgent Matters  

 

  Items not on the agenda that the Chairman of the Board is of 
the opinion should be considered as a matter of urgency by 

reason of special circumstances. 
 

10.45 am 4.   Minutes (Pages 5 - 12) 
 

  The Board is asked to confirm the minutes of the meeting of the 

Health and Wellbeing Board held on 24 June 2021. 
 

10.50 am 5.   Public Forum  
 

  The Board invites questions and comments from the public for 

consideration at the meeting.  Please submit questions, at least 
three days ahead of the meeting in order to allow a 

Public Document Pack

Page 1

http://www.westsussex.public-i.tv/core/portal/home


substantive answer to be given. Contact Erica Keegan on 

Telephone: 0330 222 6050 (a local call) or via email: 
erica.keegan@westsussex.gov.uk  
 

The meeting will be available to watch live via the Internet at 
this address:  

http://www.westsussex.public-i.tv/core/portal/home 
 
 

11.10 am 6.   Children First Board (a sub-group of the Health and 
Wellbeing Board)  
 

  The Children First Board, being accountable to the West Sussex 
Health and Wellbeing Board, as a sub-group of the Board, will 

provide a formal update at its quarterly public meetings. 
 

11.25 am 7.   West Sussex COVID-19 Local Outbreak Engagement 
Board (Pages 13 - 16) 
 

  The Local Outbreak Engagement Board, being accountable to 
the West Sussex Health and Wellbeing Board, as a sub-group of 

the Board, will provide a formal update. This will include an 
update on the latest position with respect to Covid19 with a 

further verbal report at the meeting should further information 
become available. 
 

11.45 am 8.   Learning Disability Awareness Report (Pages 17 - 38) 
 

  At the Health and Wellbeing Board Meeting  on 28 January 2021 
a report was presented, on behalf of the Learning Disability 
Partnership Board, which asked Board Members to consider 

what actions each could take forward to improve accessibility 
and health outcomes for people with a learning disability. It was 

agreed that all respective organisations would develop learning 
disability inclusion into their plans and this work will be shared 
at this meeting. 

 
12.00 pm 9.   Sussex Wide Covid19 Voluntary, Community and Social 

Enterprise Sector  Review (Pages 39 - 56) 
 

  The Chief Executive, Community Works, will present a report on 

the Sussex Wide Voluntary, Community and Social Enterprise 
(VCSE) review which captured the scale of change within VCSE 

organisations in order to meet the needs of their communities 
and service users during the Covid-19 crisis. 
 

12.15 pm 10.   Joint Carer Strategy 2021-2026 (Pages 57 - 78) 
 

  Carer support not only helps to address the health inequality 
experienced by many carers but good care by family and friends 

carers also helps to promote the health and wellbeing of so 
many of our residents and communities. 
 

The new strategy has reset goals and objectives that will help 

Page 2

mailto:erica.keegan@westsussex.gov.uk
http://www.westsussex.public-i.tv/core/portal/home


target resources effectively and encourage all stakeholders to 

work more cohesively together. It will also interface other key 
strategies, such as the new Joint Dementia Strategy, published 
last autumn, and the developing Strategy for Adult Social Care. 

 
The Health and Wellbeing Board is asked to: - 

 
i. Review, comment on and endorse the ambitions and 

aims within the new Joint Carer Strategy 

 
ii. Monitor progress against the strategy and champion the 

goals and objectives. 
 

12.30 pm 11.   Public Health Update  
 

  The Director of Public Health will provide an update on current 

public health matters. 
 

12.40 pm 12.   Integrated Care System/Place Based Planning  
 

  A verbal update will be received from the Executive Managing 

Director, West Sussex Clinical Commissioning Group and the 
West Sussex County Council Executive Director Adults and 

Health.  
 

12.50 pm 13.   Better Care Fund Monitoring Quarter 1 2021-22 (Pages 79 

- 90) 
 

  The Joint Strategic Director of Commissioning, West Sussex 
Clinical Commissioning Group and West Sussex County Council 
will present this report,  providing a summary of the planning 

requirements as understood at the time of writing, funding 
sources, and expenditure plan for the West Sussex Better Care 

Fund in 2021/22, along with the regular monitoring of 
performance against the four national metrics for Quarter 1 
2021/22. 

 
1.00 pm 14.   Work Programme (Pages 91 - 92) 

 

  To note the work programme for 21/22 as attached. Members 
of the Board are requested to mention any items which they 

believe to be of relevance to the business of the Health and 
Wellbeing Board. If any member puts forward an item the 

Board is asked to assess briefly whether to refer the matter to 
the Chairman to consider in detail for future inclusion. 
 

1.10 pm 15.   Date of next Meeting  
 

  The next meeting of the Board will be held at 10.30 am on 27 
January 2022.   

 
 
 

 

Page 3



To all members of the West Sussex Health and Wellbeing Board 

Page 4



West Sussex Health and Wellbeing Board 
 

24 June 2021 – At a virtual meeting of the West Sussex Health and Wellbeing 
Board held at 10.30 am 
 

Present: Cllr Bob Lanzer (Chairman) 

 
Cllr Amanda Jupp, Cllr Jacquie Russell, Cllr Duncan Crow, Cllr Garry Wall, 
Keith Hinkley, Cheryl George, Lucy Butler, Emily King, Chris Clark, Pennie Ford, 

Dr Laura Hill, Sally Dartnell, Helen Rice, Jess Sumner, Catherine Howe,  
Gethin Hughes, Kate Wilson, Annie Callanan and Sally Flint 

 
Apologies were received from: Alison Challenger (sent representative), 
Nigel Lynn, Natalie Brahma-Pearl (sent representative), Michael Wilson, Siobhan 

Melia and Marianne Griffiths (sent representative) 
 

 
 
 

 
 

Part I 
 

1.    Chairman's Welcome and Membership  

 
1.1 The Chairman welcomed those attending and noted apologies.   

Councillor Bob Lanzer introduced himself as the Cabinet Member for, 
Public Health and Wellbeing and as the new Chairman of the Health and 

Wellbeing Board. It was noted that Councillor Amanda Jupp, the outgoing 
Chairman, would continue as a Member of the Board in her role as Cabinet 
Member for Adult Services. 

 
1.2 As it was the start of the Municipal year 2021/22 the Chairman 

asked Members of the West Sussex Health and Wellbeing Board to note its 
membership (copy appended to the agenda and available on the Website). 
The Board’s new members; Catherine Howe, Interim Chief Executive Adur 

and Worthing Councils and Councillor Garry Wall as the newly elected 
Chairman for the Health and Adult Social Care Scrutiny Committee, were 

welcomed.  
 
1.3 Reflecting on pandemic progress since the Board last met in January 

2021, the Chairman acknowledged that Covid19 had  been one of the 
greatest challenges that public health, social care, the NHS, and all our 

communities had faced. He welcomed the vaccine that had shown true 
partnership working in its delivery with mass vaccination, at pace, across 
the communities of West Sussex.  The Chairman informed that this work 

continued to include the targeting of health inequalities by engaging with 
residents and communities in innovative ways such as mobile vaccination 

units, flexibility with clinics and utilising existing community and faith 
links.  
 

1.4 The Chairman took the opportunity, on behalf of the Health and 
Wellbeing Board, to express his thanks and appreciation to all those who 

were working on the delivery of the vaccination programme, led by Sussex 

Page 5

Agenda Item 4

https://westsussex.moderngov.co.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=185&MId=2760&Ver=4


Health and Care Partnership and supported by the County Council, 

including the health and social care workforce, district and borough 
councils, volunteers, communities, and everyone who had taken up the 
offer of vaccination.  

 
1.5 In concluding his welcome, the Chairman referenced the recent 

Government announcement that there would be a 4-week pause of the 
roadmap out of lockdown due to the exponential growth of the Delta 
variant spreading across England.  Data would be reviewed by the 

Government to ascertain if risks had reduced, so that England could 
continue its roadmap out of lockdown on Monday, 19 July. It was 

acknowledged that moving into the school holiday period, with an increase 
in the number of visitors to West Sussex, communications would continue 
to play a fundamental role in helping to keep West Sussex safe, and the 

Local Outbreak Engagement Board, would continue to support the delivery 
of national messages at local authority level, using its voice to engage 

with residents, local communities, businesses and key partners. The 
Chairman urged that everyone should continue to follow the measures in 
place to help to prevent the spread of Covid19.  

 
 

2.    Declaration of Interests  
 
2.1 There were no declarations. 

 
3.    Minutes  

 
3.1 Resolved – that the minutes of the meeting held on 28 January 

2021 are approved as a correct record and are signed by the Chairman. 
 

4.    Public Forum  

 
4.1 The Board had invited questions from the public for consideration at 

this meeting. Two questions had been received and were responded to at 
the meeting;  
 

 Radiotherapy services in West Sussex – the Executive Managing 
Director West Sussex Clinical Commissioning Group (CCG) 

explained that the commissioning of radiotherapy services within 
the NHS is the remit of Specialised Commissioning, under NHS 
England. All reviews of radiotherapy provision across the Southeast 

region were paused during 2020 and early 2021 due to the COVID-
19 pandemic but moving forward, the Southeast specialised 

commissioning team and the Surrey & Sussex Cancer Alliance would 
be working to review future radiotherapy requirements for West 
Sussex.  

 
 How the Board would address the negative impact of the Covid19 

lockdown on children – the Executive Director Children, Young 
People and Learning acknowledged that there had been an increase 
in demand across both Early Help and children’s social care services 

over the past year and this was likely to be due to the impact of the 
pandemic.  It was stated that the council was working very closely 

with health colleagues in finding ways of addressing this; 

Page 6

Agenda Item 4



 

a) the Early Help proposed new service had been designed to 
provide the capacity to identify and meet the needs of the 
most vulnerable children and families;  

b) Children’s social care had invested in increasing the 
number of workers in the Integrated Front Door,  

Assessment and Intervention teams and the Family 
Support and Protection teams; and  

c) a new model of social work, the Family Safeguarding 

model, was being introduced, which would create multi-
disciplinary teams to support families in a co-ordinated 

way. Within the education setting there had been an 
increase in the mental health in schools service.  

 

4.2 The Chairman confirmed that the questioners would also receive the 
responses in writing following the meeting.  

 
  

5.    Update on the Children First Board  

 
5.1 The Board received a report updating on the work of the Children 

First Board which was chaired by Councillor Jacquie Russell as Cabinet 
Member for Children and Young People and had met on 8 October 2020, 
14 January 2021 and 3 April 2021. It was informed that the Children First 

Board had a strong ethos of engaging with children and young people, 
keeping their views central to its work.  

 
5.2 In response to the concerns raised at the Children First Board by 

the young people representatives on future wellbeing, following the impact 
of Covid19, it was noted that emotional wellbeing and good mental health 
for Children and young people was a key priority for this Board.  It was 

informed that an Emotional Wellbeing and Mental Health subgroup had 
been formed to develop and oversee implementation of a place-based 

improvement and delivery plan. The first meeting would be held in late 
June and every two months thereafter.  
 

5.3 In receiving this report, Health and Wellbeing Board Members 
praised all that the Children First Board had achieved so far and 

congratulated the Cabinet Member for Children and Young People and the 
Executive Director Children, Young People and Learning on the depth of 
engagement with children and young people.  

 
5.4 Resolved – that the Health and Wellbeing Board noted the Children 

First Board Report dated 24 June 2021.  
 
 

6.    West Sussex COVID-19 Local Outbreak Engagement Board  
 

6.1 The Health and Wellbeing Board received its quarterly update on the 
progress of the Covid19 Local Outbreak Engagement Board (LOEB). 
Councillor Bob Lanzer was announced as the new Chairman of this Board 

following his appointment, confirmed on 21 May 2021 Full Council 
meeting, as Cabinet Member for Public Health and Wellbeing.   

 

Page 7

Agenda Item 4



6.2 The Board was informed that since its last report in January 2021 

LOEB work had remained focused on a partnership approach, bringing key 
systems leaders together, with the aim of reducing the spread of infection 
and saving lives.  The following key pieces of work had been supported; 

 
 Asymptomatic Testing Programme 

 Covid19 Vaccination Programme 
 Local Tracing Partnership 
 Early Years/Schools/University 

 West Sussex County Council Elections 
 Future Events 

 Covid19 Communications – particularly targeting those communities 
experiencing health inequalities 

 

6.3 Board members were provided with the latest data on Covid19 
infection rates in West Sussex noting that between 11 to 17 June 2021 

there was an infection rate of 49.5 per 100,000 of the population which 
was lower than the average in England. It was also noted that all adults 
had been offered a vaccination with a good uptake in West Sussex, PCR 

Tests for symptomatic residents were being encouraged to minimise 
spread of infection and hospitalisation figures remained low. There had 

been no deaths, in West Sussex, in recent weeks, due to Covid19.  
 
6.4 In considering how the LOEB could increase engagement with 

communities across West Sussex during the ongoing pandemic, it was 
agreed that the voluntary sector as well as the District and Boroughs were 

a good source of support allowing for flexibility in providing localised 
communications. It was acknowledged that local links had been pivotal to 

the work of the LOEB.  
 
6.5  In turning to the report’s recommendations, the Chairman gave his 

thanks for a comprehensive update. 
 

6.6 The Health and Wellbeing Board Resolved that – 
 

(1) feedback had been provided on the progress of the Covid19 

Local Outbreak Engagement Board since its last quarterly 
report in January 2021; and 

 
(2) the Board had considered how the Local Outbreak 

Engagement Board could further increase engagement with 

residents and communities across West Sussex during the 
ongoing pandemic, recognising the steps within the 

Government’s Road map out of lockdown and aligning key 
messages.  

 

7.    Healthwatch West Sussex Annual Report  
 

7.1 The Board received the Healthwatch West Sussex Annual Report 
2020/21 from the Chief Officer. 
 

7.2 In discussing the report, the following key points were made; 
 

Page 8

Agenda Item 4



 contact from residents in West Sussex had increased by 50% during 

the pandemic; 
 funding for Healthwatch per head of population was raised as a 

concern as demands were exceeding resources. It was agreed that 

a full briefing on West Sussex Healthwatch finances would be 
provided, by the Chief Officer, to the Executive Director Adults and 

Health and the Chairman of the Health and Wellbeing Board; 
 Healthwatch was thanked by Board Members for their assistance in 

supporting the targeted approach for the vaccination programme 

with their Insight work; 
 the NHS/CCG relationship with Healthwatch had been developed 

sharing areas of concern such as access to Dentistry, providing a 
local focus to NHS England Commissioners; 

 it was recognised that Healthwatch held a key role in understanding 

residents’ behaviours using this intelligence to inform work, such as 
tackling health inequalities; 

 Councillor Amanda Jupp asked for a more detailed breakdown of the 
IHCAS (Independent Health Complaints Advocacy Service) where 
demand and complexity of cases had risen significantly. The 

Healthwatch Chief Officer agreed to provide this information 
following the meeting. 

 
7.3 The Health and Wellbeing Board Resolved that; 

 

(1) stakeholder engagement with Healthwatch West Sussex to 
ensure services most effective for needs be promoted; and 

 
(2) the priorities be recognised with updates sought on progress 

against these priorities. 
 
 

8.    West Sussex Safeguarding Adults Board Annual Report  
 

8.1  The Head of Safeguarding and the Independent Chairman of the 
Adults Safeguarding Board presented the West Sussex Safeguarding 
Adults Annual Report 2020/21.  

 
8.2 Achievements highlighted were; 

 
 the Safeguarding Adults Board had reviewed processes to ensure 

year on year improvement. A Pan Sussex Information Sharing 

Protocol and a Pan Sussex Adult Death Protocol had been developed 
with East Sussex and Brighton and Hove Safeguarding Boards; 

 a new Subgroup had been established, Multi-Agency Risk 
Management Subgroup (MARM) assisting with the management of 
challenging cases, such as homelessness, to ensure effective 

communication across the support agencies; 
 every Safeguarding Adults Board meeting starts with a Case Study 

to ensure the voice of the user is heard reminding on what needs to 
improve;  

 a key priority was identified as Collaborative working as well as 

making safeguarding personal; 

Page 9

Agenda Item 4



 the pandemic had seen a rise in online scams and Sussex Police had 

spoken on this topic at the recent Annual Safeguarding Adults 
Conference. 

 

8.3 In receiving the Safeguarding Adults Annual Report 2020/21, the 
Cabinet Member for Adults Services commended the plans for 

improvement and thanked the Independent Chairman and everyone 
involved for excellent progress. The Executive Director Adults and Health 
also commended the report for its clarity and noticeable focus of working 

collaboratively as well as transparently.  
 

8.4 The Independent Chairman Adults Safeguarding Board drew Board 
Member’s attention to the fact that the full the impact of the pandemic had 
not yet been realised, even in people that had not been vulnerable before. 

The Health and Wellbeing Board could expect to see covid19 legacy issues 
such as mental health, homelessness, redundancy, criminality and 

exploitation. In discussing this, the Board agreed that a future item would 
be added to the work plan on online fraud.  
 

8.5 The Health and Wellbeing Board Resolved that;  
 

(1) the West Sussex Safeguarding Adults Board’s strategic plan 
to improve prevention services and the experience of adults 
in West Sussex who are at risk of abuse and/or neglect be 

actively supported; 
 

(2) feedback be provided on how the Health and Wellbeing 
Board, as representative of the partner agencies and, within 

the Collaborative Working Agreement, will contribute to the 
West Sussex Safeguarding Adults Board’s priorities for 
2021-22; and 

 
(3) learning and improvement which interfaces with Adult 

Safeguarding be shared.  
 

 

 
9.    Integrated Care System, Place Based Plan  

 
9.1 The Executive Director Adults and Health, the Joint Strategic 
Director of Commissioning and the Executive Managing Director, West 

Sussex Clinical Commissioning Group provided a verbal update on the 
Integrated Care System (ICS) and the Place Based Plan, outlining the 

significant developments as a result of the Governments White Paper on  
legislative proposals for NHS Social Care Reform.  
 

9.2 The Joint Strategic Director of Commissioning informed the Board 
on planning and the following key points were made; 

 
 it was reminded that the Place Based Plan was not a new plan 

but started with the West Sussex Joint Health and Wellbeing 

Strategy which was being used as a strategic lead for Health 
and Care, feeding into the NHS Long Term Plan; 

Page 10

Agenda Item 4



 the Place Based Plan was being used to deliver objectives as 

a partnership whilst incorporating learning, including 
Covid19, into the planning journey; 

 the Place Based Plan would help direct what needed to be 

achieved this year as well as the longer term strategic 
directive; 

 a piece of work had been undertaken on Health Integration 
using West Sussex Communications and Engagement 
Network to inform on what residents would like joined up 

care to look like. 
 

9.3 The Executive Managing Director, West Sussex Clinical 
Commissioning Group provided an update to the Board on the Integrated 
Care System (ICS) development and the following key points were made; 

 
 the NHS had produced a design framework, in response to 

the white paper, outlining the headline operational 
expectations and what that would mean across partners;  

 a place-based focus and partnership working would remain 

central to the government’s proposal allowing West Sussex 
partners to build upon the excellent progress that had already 

been made on place based structure; 
 a statutory ICS body would be established at a Sussex wide 

level – one element being the implementation of an ICS 

Health and Care Partnership Board which would work across 
the NHS and partners as well as maintaining the key 

relationship with the Health and Wellbeing Boards. There 
would no longer be a Clinical Commissioning Group model; 

 it was noted that place-based working at local levels would 
continue to be a key focus and West Sussex would be able to 
continue to build upon its firm foundation of place-based 

work. 
 

9.4 The Executive Director Adults and Health concluded by informing 
Board Members that there would be a report presented to the Cabinet 
meeting on 27 July 2021 on the development of  Integrated Social Care 

and the Government’s White Paper so that West Sussex County Council 
could consider potential changes. These included ensuring that West 

Sussex County Council fully contributes to collaborative, place-based 
working. It was noted that the report to Cabinet would be circulated to 
members of the Health and Wellbeing Board.  

 
9.5 The Chairman gave his thanks for this update and asked for any 

comments/questions. The following key points were made; 
 

 the importance of the support provided by the voluntary 

sector to achieve an integrated, place based, structure was 
recognised and welcomed; 

 the key role of the District and Borough Councils in 
collaborative place based working was also noted; 

 the Chairman encouraged Board Members to watch the 

discussion at the public Cabinet Meeting in July.  
 

 

Page 11

Agenda Item 4

https://westsussex.moderngov.co.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=134&MId=2739&Ver=4


10.    Better Care Fund Monitoring Quarter 3 & Quarter 4 2020-21  

 
10.1 The Board received the Better Care Fund (BCF) Monitoring Report 
Quarter 3 and 4 2020-21 from the Joint Strategic Director of 

Commissioning. The report summarised performance against national 
metrics and provided a brief overview of expectations for 2021/22 pending 

publication of guidance.  
 
10.2 In receiving the report, Board Members noted that publication of the 

Better Care Fund Policy Framework was expected shortly which would 
confirm national conditions and set direction. Following publication there 

was a planning window of 8 weeks when the Joint Strategic 
Commissioning Group would work with commissioners and system 
partners to conduct an annual review and joint planning process. Once 

completed it was confirmed that plans would be presented to a future 
meeting of the Health and Wellbeing Board. 

 
10.3 The Health and Wellbeing Board Resolved that – 
 

(1) the West Sussex performance against the national BCF 
metrics at Q3 and Q4 2021/22 and the degree to which 

these are impacted by Covid19 be noted; and 
(2) the BCF planning expectations 2021/22 be noted. 

 

 
11.    Health and Wellbeing Board Work Plan 21-22  

 
11.1 The Chairman referred Members to the Health and Wellbeing 

Board’s Work Plan 2021-22 and were asked to mention any items believed 
to be of relevance to the business of the Health and Wellbeing Board. In 
receiving the work plan Members requested that the following items be 

considered for the next formal meeting in October; 
 

 Covid19 Sussex wide review from the voluntary sector  
 Learning Disability Awareness to include access to services 

such as dentistry 

 Online Fraud Prevention from Community Safety 
 West Sussex Plan – (Clinical Commissioning Group vision and 

Goals that could be shared in an informal, seminar format)  
 
11.2 The Health and Wellbeing Board then noted the Health and 

Wellbeing Board Work Plan 2021-22.  
 

 
12.    Date of next Meeting  

 

12.1 The date of the next meeting of the Health and Wellbeing Board was 
confirmed as 7 October 2021. 

 
The meeting ended at 12.39 pm 

 

 
 

Chairman 

Page 12

Agenda Item 4



 

West Sussex Health and Wellbeing Board 

7 October 2021 

West Sussex COVID-19 Local Outbreak Engagement Board 

Report by: Alison Challenger, Director of Public Health 

 

Summary 

This report provides a quarterly update on the West Sussex COVID-19 Local Outbreak 

Engagement Board (LOEB). 

The Board was established as part of the Government’s requirements for the COVID-
19 National Test and Trace Programme and is accountable to the West Sussex Health 
and Wellbeing Board, as a sub-group of the Board, providing formal updates at its 

quarterly public meetings.   

Recommendation(s) to the Board  

The Health and Wellbeing Board is asked to; 

(1) Provide feedback on the progress of the West Sussex COVID-19 Local Outbreak 
Engagement Board (LOEB) since the last quarterly report to the Health and 

Wellbeing Board in June 2021. 

(2) To consider how the LOEB can further maximise its’ strength in partnership 
working to maintain and increase engagement with residents and communities 

across the county, aligned to the Government’s plans set out in the COVID-19 
Response: Autumn and Winter Plan 2021. 

 

Relevance to Joint Health and Wellbeing Strategy 

West Sussex Public Health’s COVID-19 response aims to minimise the impact of the 

virus on the population of West Sussex by controlling the COVID-19 rate of 
reproduction (R), reducing the spread of infection and saving lives. In line with the 
West Sussex Joint Health and Wellbeing Strategy priorities, this preventative approach 

also aims to improve the overall health outcomes of West Sussex residents and 
reduce inequalities, supporting our local population during these challenging times.   

1 Background and context 

 The West Sussex member led Local Outbreak Engagement Board (LOEB) is a 

sub-group of the West Sussex Health and Wellbeing Board, providing political 
ownership and public facing engagement and communication for outbreak 

response during the COVID-19 pandemic.  

 The LOEB is a key part of the governance structure for the West Sussex COVID-
19 Local Outbreak Control Plan (LOCP). The Director of Public Health drives this 

Page 13

Agenda Item 7

http://www2.westsussex.gov.uk/ds/cttee/hwb/jhws2019to2024.pdf


local plan through the West Sussex COVID-19 Health Protection Board in 

collaboration with the West Sussex County Council (WSCC) Strategic 
Management Group (Gold command) and the LOEB. 

 The LOCP is currently being refreshed following the publication by the 

Government of the updated COVID-19 contain framework: a guide for local 
decision-makers [updated 5 August 2021]. 

 The Board welcomed Cllr Lanzer as the new Chairman of the LOEB in June 

2021, following local Elections on 6 May 2021 and the implementation of a new 
portfolio for Public Health and Wellbeing, for which Cllr Lanzer was appointed as 
Cabinet Member.  

 The Board continues to meet regularly, with the next meeting scheduled for 
Monday 18 October 2021.  

 Since the last formal update was provided to the West Sussex Health and 
Wellbeing Board in June 2021, the Board has met three times; 17 June, 5 

August, and 20 September.  

 A written update was also provided to Board members on 7 September 
outlining the latest COVID-19 data and Government policy updates. 

 

Local Outbreak Engagement Board Progress Update 

 The LOEB remains focused on its role in bringing together key systems leaders 
across the County Council and the wider health and social care system, applying 
its collective strength and resources to reduce the spread of infection and save 

lives across the county. 

 Agenda items regularly include updates across a number of areas in the COVID-
19 response, including a COVID-19 update from the Director of Public Health, 

COVID-19 data overview, events, testing, COVID-19 NHS Vaccination 
Programme, communications and engagement, and the Local Tracing 
Partnership (LTP). The Board has also been updated on quarantine hotels, and 

the West Sussex COVID-19 Local Outbreak Control Plan (LOCP). 

 This approach has ensured that the LOEB remain informed throughout the 
response, having the opportunity to contribute widely to these areas.  

 In the most recent testing update to the Board, it was highlighted that the 

Sussex COVID-19 Support Street Team engages with the public on vaccination, 
testing and the NHS app, answers questions and hands out Lateral Flow Tests 

(LFTs). Working in different places at different times, this approach has been 
effective in engaging with residents and communities.  

 West Sussex continues to have two Regional Test Centres (RTCs) at Gatwick 

and Tangmere, and five Local Test Centres (LTCs) in Chichester, Littlehampton, 
Worthing, Horsham and Bognor. A Mobile Testing Unit (MTU) also rotates 
around six sites in the county throughout the month.  

 The Board were delighted to hear about the continued success of the County 

Council’s resident newsletter, with just under 200,000 subscribers. This is a key 
communication channel to deliver national messages to local residents and 

Page 14

Agenda Item 7



communities, to help keep West Sussex safe. The WSCC Communications Team 

works close with local NHS and district and borough council communications 
leads to deliver national messages.  

 With regards to events, West Sussex Public Health have worked in collaboration 

with the Goodwood Estate and key partners including Chichester District Council 
Environmental Health, Public Health England, and the Department for Digital, 

Culture, Media & Sport (DCMS), contributing to arrangements for the Goodwood 
Festival of Speed (8-11 July), which was a pilot event in Phase 3 of the 
Government’s Events Research Programme.  

 The Goodwood Revival also took place 17-19 September; West Sussex Public 

Health worked with Chichester District Council Environmental Health 
contributing to the arrangements for the event, incorporating learning from the 

Festival of Speed. Goodwood continued to implement many of the good practice 
measures of the pilot event at the Revival and also at Glorious Goodwood, to 

limit transmission of the virus. 

 Additional communications were put out for this event, particularly in the 
Chichester area, which emphasised people testing themselves before and after 
the event.  

 

Key Policy Changes 

 The COVID-19 Contain Framework; a guide for local decision-makers 
was published on 30 July and updated on 5 August.  

 It highlights that local authorities will remain central to the pandemic response, 
working with wider systems partners, outlining how local, regional and national 

partners should continue to work with each other, the public, institutions, 
businesses, and other local systems partners in their communities to prevent, 

manage and contain outbreaks of the virus.  

 Key areas focused on are vaccines, enabling the public to make informed 
decisions through Government guidance, proportionate test, trace and isolate 

plans, managing risks at the border and supporting the global response to 
reduce risk of variants emerging, and retaining contingency measures to 
respond to unexpected events.  

 West Sussex Public Health are reviewing the framework and updating the West 

Sussex COVID-19 Local Outbreak Control Plan (LOCP), as required.  

 On 14 September 2021, the Government published the COVID-19 Response: 

Autumn and Winter Plan 2021 detailing Plan A, a comprehensive approach to 

steering the country though autumn and winter 2021/22, including promoting 
vaccines and focusing on encouraging safer behaviours e.g. ventilation, hand 
washing, testing, face coverings etc., and Plan B, should it be required if the data 

suggests the NHS is likely to come under unsustainable pressure. This includes 
introducing mandatory vaccine only COVID-status certification and legally 
mandating face coverings in some settings and asking people to work from home 

for a limited period if they can.  

 The COVID-19 vaccination is now available to all those aged 12 years and over, and 
Phase 3 of the programme began rolling out week commencing 20 September with 

Page 15

Agenda Item 7

https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/containing-and-managing-local-coronavirus-covid-19-outbreaks/covid-19-contain-framework-a-guide-for-local-decision-makers
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/covid-19-response-autumn-and-winter-plan-2021
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/covid-19-response-autumn-and-winter-plan-2021
https://www.gov.uk/government/news/young-people-aged-12-to-15-to-be-offered-a-covid-19-vaccine


booster doses offered to priority groups including care home residents, over-50s, 

younger adults with health conditions and frontline health and social care workers. 

 West Sussex Public Health continues to work very closely with the Sussex Health 
and Care Partnership (SHCP) who are delivering the programme, to increase 

vaccine uptake, focusing on reducing health inequalities and working with our 
communities across West Sussex. Further information on the NHS COVID-19 
vaccination programme can be found on the SCHP website.  

 The LOEB will continue to use its voice to engage with residents, communities, 

key partners, and businesses to deliver national messages to help keep West 
Sussex safe.  

 

2 Proposal details 

2.1 The purpose of this paper is to provide feedback on the progress of the West 

Sussex COVID-19 Local Outbreak Engagement Board (LOEB) since the last 
quarterly report to the Health and Wellbeing Board in June 2021. 

2.2 Views are sought from the West Sussex Health and Wellbeing Board on how the 

LOEB can further maximise its’ strength in partnership working to maintain and 
increase engagement with residents and communities across the county, 

aligned to the Government’s plans set out in the COVID-19 Response: Autumn 
and Winter Plan 2021.  

 

3 Consultation, engagement and advice 

3.1   Not applicable. 

 

 

Contact: Alison Thomson, Public Health Lead – Partnerships Tel. 0330 222 4132 

Email: alison.thomson@westsussex.gov.uk  

 

Appendices: None 

 

Background papers: None 

Page 16

Agenda Item 7

https://www.gov.uk/government/news/most-vulnerable-to-be-offered-covid-19-booster-vaccines-from-next-week
https://www.sussexhealthandcare.uk/keepsussexsafe/sussex-covid-19-vaccination-programme/
mailto:alison.thomson@westsussex.gov.uk


 

Report to West Sussex Health and Wellbeing Board 

7 October 2021 

Learning Disability Awareness 

Report by Lisa Loveman, Commissioning Manager (Learning Disability & Autism), 
Adults and Health Directorate, West Sussex County Council 

 

Summary 

In January 2021 the Learning Disability Partnership Board gave a report to the Health 
and Wellbeing Board.  

The report was about low life expectancy, making reasonable adjustments and digital 
inclusion. 

• Life expectancy is the age that most people die. 

• Reasonable adjustments is changing the way we usually do things to make sure 

people can use services. 

• Digital inclusion means being able go online and use digital devices. 

The report was to tell the Board about some important issues for people with a 
learning disability. 

Members of the Board were asked to report back on how their organisation is 

improving access and outcomes for people with a learning disability. 

Reports came back from: 

• West Sussex CCG and Adult services 

• Age UK 

• West Sussex Communities Team 

• Sussex Partnership NHS Foundation Trust 

• Queen Victoria Hospital Trust 

• Sussex Police 

• West Sussex Fire and Rescue 

• Healthwatch 

An easy read report brings all the responses together. This shows Members have a 

wide range of plans, ideas and promises which will improve outcomes for people with 
a learning disability. 

Recommendation(s) to the Board  

Page 17

Agenda Item 8



The Health and Wellbeing Board is asked to; 

(1) Note the content of this report. 

(2) Ask organisations who did not send in a report to follow this up. 

(3) To commit to hear again in 2022 about important issues coming from the 
Learning Disability Partnership Board. 

 

Relevance to Joint Health and Wellbeing Strategy 

The West Sussex Joint and Wellbeing Strategy has a priority to reduce health 

inequalities. This means giving everyone the same opportunities to lead a healthy life, 
no matter where they live or who they are. To tackle inequalities, we must give even 
more attention to those who are at greatest risk of poor health.  

Contact: Lisa Loveman, Commissioning Manager (Learning Disability & Autism), 

Adults and Health Directorate, West Sussex County Council, 0330 22 23430 and 

Lisa.Loveman@westsussex.gov.uk  

Appendices 

1. Learning Disability Awareness Report  

2. Learning Disability Partnership Board Report 

Page 18

Agenda Item 8

http://www2.westsussex.gov.uk/ds/cttee/hwb/jhws2019to2024.pdf
mailto:Lisa.Loveman@westsussex.gov.uk


 

 
Introduction 
 
The Learning Disability Partnership Board’s 
goal is to help adults with a learning 
disability: 

• Stay healthy 
• Live their best life 
• Keep safe 

 

 We do this by working together. Self-

advocates working with a wide range of 
health, social care and community 
organisations. 
 
We are doing well when the voice of people 
with a learning disability is heard and included 
in health and social care decisions. 
 

 The Board believes that people with learning 
disabilities have the right to the same 
opportunities as anyone else:  
 

• A place to live, a job and included in the 
community you live in. 

• Involved in the design and delivery of 
any support you get.  

 
A factsheet about the Board can be found 
here. 
 

  
We are pleased to talk to the Health and 
Wellbeing Board.  

 
We hope that this will lead to the Board 
thinking about what people with learning 
disability have said when making their 
decisions. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 19

Agenda Item 8
Appendix 1

https://www.westsussex.gov.uk/media/10223/ldpb_easy_read_factsheet.pdf


 

 
What things has the Learning 

Disability Partnership Board talked 

about? 
 
The Board has been meeting 6 times a year 
since 2001. 
 
The things we talk about come under these 
themes:  

• Employment  

• Friends, Relationships and Community 
• Good Health 
• Independent Living 

 
In 2019 the Board talked about: 
  

• Money 
• Loneliness 
• Mental health medication (STOMP) 
• Support to people in mental health 

hospitals. 

 
In 2020 we talked about: 

• Supported Living 
• Employment 
• Safeguarding, Covid-19 and LeDeR 
• Digital Inclusion 
• Access to Primary Care – GP services 

 
The Board looks for good practice and how 
more people can benefit from this. 
 

It is important to share examples of how 
people and organisations are working in a way 
that includes people with learning disabilities. 
 
Minutes are posted on the WSCC website. 
 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 20

Agenda Item 8
Appendix 1

https://www.westsussex.gov.uk/about-the-council/how-the-council-works/committees-and-decision-making/joint-arrangements/learning-disability-partnership-board-ldpb/


 

 
What do we want to talk about 

today? 
 
2 topics that we talked about in 2020 were 
chosen by the Board to talk to you about 
today: 
 

• Preventing people with a learning 
disability dying earlier than the general 
population.  

 

• Digital inclusion - nobody is excluded due 
to a lack of digital access, confidence or 
skills. 

 

 
Preventing people with a learning 

disability dying younger than the 

general population 

 Here are some reports to read: 
 
1.  Learning Disability Mortality Review 

(LeDeR) programme annual report. 
 
In July 2020 the 4th LeDeR report was 
published. Here is a film about its findings. 
 
The NHS has written a report about what 
improvements are being made it is called 
action from learning and here is the easy read 
version. 
  

 2. LeDeR Sussex Annual Report 

 
Published in June 2020. 
Includes the Sussex LeDeR Covid Response. 
 

  

 

 

 

 

 

Page 21

Agenda Item 8
Appendix 1

http://www.bristol.ac.uk/sps/leder/resources/annual-reports/
http://www.bristol.ac.uk/sps/leder/resources/annual-reports/
https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=7lvHM_DAi80
https://www.england.nhs.uk/wp-content/uploads/2019/05/action-from-learning-easy-read.pdf
https://www.england.nhs.uk/wp-content/uploads/2019/05/action-from-learning-easy-read.pdf
https://www.brightonandhoveccg.nhs.uk/wp-content/uploads/2020/08/Sussex-LeDeR-annual-report-2019-20.pdf


 

 3. LeDeR national report into Covid-19 deaths 

 
This report tells us that people with learning 
disabilities are more likely to die if they get 
Covid-19.  
 
This easy read report says what is being done 
about this. 
 

 
 

4. Reasonable Adjustments 
 
A reasonable adjustment is changing the way 

we usually do things to make sure people can 
use services. 
 
Making reasonable adjustments is very 
important to help prevent poor health. 
 
In Sussex there has been lots of work to 
make sure that easy read information about 
Covid-19 is available.   
 
Agencies have worked together to make sure 

they understand how to support people with 
learning disabilities who have Covid-19. This 
includes GPs and hospitals.  
 
Government information on reasonable 
adjustments for people with a learning 
disability. 
 
Communicating with people with a learning 
disability and autism, dementia and mental 
health needs – COVID-19 guidance 

 

  

 

 

 

 

Page 22

Agenda Item 8
Appendix 1

http://www.bristol.ac.uk/media-library/sites/sps/leder/Deaths%20of%20people%20with%20learning%20disabilities%20from%20COVID-19.pdf
https://www.england.nhs.uk/wp-content/uploads/2020/11/Action-from-learning-easy-read.pdf
https://www.gov.uk/government/collections/reasonable-adjustments-for-people-with-a-learning-disability
https://www.england.nhs.uk/coronavirus/wp-content/uploads/sites/52/2020/03/C0590-Patient-carer-and-family-engagement-and-communication-during-the-coronavirus-COVID-19-pandemic.pdf


 

 5. Living together in a fair way 

 
Easy read report (2019) by Institute of Health 
Equity about why social factors, for example 
employment, lead to people with a learning 
disability not living as long as other people. 
 

 6. Annual Health Checks for People with a 
Learning Disability and Hospital Passports 

 
Annual Health Checks are carried out by 
Doctors. This link takes you to Guidance 

including details of online appointments. 
 

 
Example 1 - the Flu Jab  
 
Flu prevention was more important than ever 
because of Covid-19.  
 
Public Health England said in November that 
people with learning disabilities were 6 times 
more likely to die from COVID-19 than the 

general population. Breathing difficulties was 
a major cause of these deaths. 
 
We know that there were some reasonable 
adjustments for the flu jab program: 
 

• Targeted invites sent via the GP’s 
Learning Disability Registers 

• Easy read information 
• Promotional films made by people with a 

learning disability. 

• Information for Providers about consent. 
• Nasal spray alternative to injection. 
• Support from the Learning Disability 

Health Facilitation Team.  
 
The Health and Wellbeing Board could check 
the success of the program including the: 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 23

Agenda Item 8
Appendix 1

http://www.instituteofhealthequity.org/file-manager/PDFs/NHSE_LD_Report/ld-report-easy-read-lo-res_v2.pdf
https://www.sussexccgs.nhs.uk/clinical_documents/learning-disabilities-annual-health-checks/


 

 

• Number of people with a learning 
disability who had a flu jab compared to 
other years. 
 

• If there are any lessons to be learnt that 
will help the Covid-19 vaccination and 
next winters flu. 
 

• Whether organisations are preparing to 
Covid-19 vaccinate people with a 
learning disability. 

 

Example 2 – NHS national focus on 

older people in Care Homes 
 
We have seen during the Covid-19 pandemic 
a national response that has mostly focussed 
on registered care homes.  
 
An example is the Enhanced Health in Care 
Homes (EHCH) Approach. This is where each 

care home has a named GP who leads on 
weekly home visits and a multi-disciplinary 
way of working with people in the care home. 
 
70% of people with a learning disability do 
not live in registered care home. Many people 
with complex health needs live in supported 
living accommodation, Shared Lives or with 
their families.  
 
About half of the deaths of people with a 
learning disability from COVID-19 were in 
people aged 50-69 years. Between March – 
June 2020 (first lockdown) 615 (46%) of 
deaths of people with a learning disability 
were from Covid-19.  
 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 24

Agenda Item 8
Appendix 1



 

The Health and Wellbeing Board could 

advocate that clinically vulnerable people, in 
other types of care and support 
accommodation, do not miss out on health 
support.  

Example 3 - Spotting the early signs 

that someone is becoming unwell.  
 
The Learning Disability Partnership Board 
heard that everyone needs to be able to 
beware of: 

 
• Diagnostic overshadowing - this is when 

a change in someone is put down to their 
disability or mental health without 
looking into other things like their 
physical health. 
 

• Be aware of atypical presentations to 
pain, illness, or discomfort – this is when 
a person doesn’t have the usual signs of 
being ill. 

 
• Hospital Passports – a passport is 

important for helping hospital staff see 
important information about you quickly 
to care for you well. 
 

• Listening to carers and families who will 
know the person well. 
 
Adapt communication - simple clear 
language and pictures. 
 

• Making reasonable adjustments. 
 
The Health and Wellbeing Board could look at 
what training people who deliver care and 
support are given to be able to spot the early 
signs of ill health. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 25

Agenda Item 8
Appendix 1

https://www.nhs.uk/conditions/learning-disabilities/going-into-hospital/


 

 
Making sure people with a learning 

disability are not left behind in a 

digital world 

 This report looks at best ways to support 
digital inclusion: 
 
Guide to digital inclusion published in 
December 2020. 
 

 We are living in a digital world where lots of 
things online including:  
 

• Universal Credit 
• Electricity and other bills 
• Contacting your GP 
• Online Annual Health Checks 
• Being in touch with family and friends 

 
During the Lockdown many services moved to 
online appointments, support and activities. 
 
For example: 

• Day Services were closed, and they did 
online classes via Zoom.  

• There were no Gigs, so Gig Buddies put 
on a weekly online music festival that 
was featured on Radio 1. 

• Self-advocacy groups started meeting 
online. 

 
Joining online Zoom meetings has been 
important for some people.  Self-advocates 
said they felt less lonely and happy to see 

people’s faces.  
 
Not everyone can access Zoom.  
 
There are services providing help, for 
example: 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 26

Agenda Item 8
Appendix 1

https://www.nhsconfed.org/resources/2020/12/digital-inclusion-guide
https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=DOSoea12TsQ


 

• The Aldingbourne Trust has Lottery 

Funding to employ someone to remotely 
support service users with online issues. 

• Stay Up Late have teamed up with 
Brighton Digital Inclusion to fund SMART 
phones and internet connections. 

• Impact Advocacy have charitable funding 
to buy and lend out devices to Self-
Advocates. 

 
But many people with a learning disability do 
not have equipment, a broadband connection 
or the knowhow to do things online. 
 
To support people to connect to their families. 
the NHS have given Care Homes free iPads 
and found internet connection deals. This 
offer did not extend to all types of services. 
 
The Health and Wellbeing Board could 
consider: 
 

• If new Assessments should look at what 

support a person needs to be able to use 
online services in their daily life and the 
cost of doing this. 

 
• Who can help people with a learning 

disability develop their digital skills and 
what support is needed. 

 
• In delivery of services - is face-to-face 

still available when online isn’t an option. 
 

• Do digital inclusion programmes include 
people with a learning disability. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 27

Agenda Item 8
Appendix 1



This page is intentionally left blank



1 
 

 Introduction 

In January 2021 the Learning Disability 
Partnership Board gave a report to the 
Health and Wellbeing Board. 

This report was about low life expectancy, 
making reasonable adjustments and 
digital inclusion. 

• Life expectancy is the age that most 
people die. 

• Reasonable adjustments is changing 
the way we usually do things to 
make sure people can use services. 

• Digital inclusion means being able go 
online and use digital devices. 

Members of the Health and Wellbeing 
Board were asked to report back on how 
they are improving access and outcomes 
for people with a learning disability. 

This is what the different organisations 
said: 
 

 Health and Social Care  

The Sussex Learning Disability and 
Autism Health Strategy is a plan to 
improve people’s healthcare. It covers 3 
areas: 
 
1. Physical health 

Bringing hearing, sight and dental checks 
to specialist schools. 

Making sure each child and young person 
has a named keyworker by 2024. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 29

Agenda Item 8
Appendix 2



2 
 

Working with GP surgeries so that more 
people with learning disabilities are 
getting Annual Health Checks. 

Working with people with learning 
disabilities and/or autism to make bowel 
screening more accessible. 

Making sure people have Hospital 
Passports and that staff know about 
communication needs and other 
important information. 

Making sure if people need medication, 
they get the right medication, at the right 
time for the right reason.  

Adding more information onto computer 
records at the doctors. This will help staff 
understand what kind of support each 
person needs. 

2. Neurodevelopmental Pathway 

This will deal with problems getting an 
autism diagnosis and other conditions. 

Making waiting times shorter. 

Helping people get information and 
support once they have a diagnosis. 

3. In-patient mental health 
admissions and length of stay. 

Making sure different teams work 
together so that mental health is a part of 
a young person’s transition plan. 

Making waiting times for mental health 
support shorter.  

Teaching parents and families how to help 
with behaviour. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 30

Agenda Item 8
Appendix 2



3 
 

More people understanding autistic 
people’s needs and behaviour. 

The strategy also says that: 

All health and social care workers are 
trained. 

So that they understand autism and 
learning disabilities.  

Training will be given by people with 
autism, learning disabilities or both.  

Rolling-out the Oliver McGowan 
mandatory training. Mandatory means it 
must be done. 

People are offered information and 
letters in different formats. 

Services follow the Accessible Information 
Standard.  

This means people with learning 
disabilities get: 
 Extra time in appointments 
 Easy read letters and information 
 An annual health check 
 A health action plan 

 
Age UK 

Age UK supports older people with a 
learning disability across all its services.  

Some people with a learning disability 
volunteer for Age UK. 

Age UK’s digital inclusion techno team 
can support people with a learning 
disability. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 31

Agenda Item 8
Appendix 2



4 
 

When Age UK need help they work in 
partnership with learning disability 
specialist partners. 

Age UK’s database puts a flag on peoples 
record who need extra support. 

Age UK have plans to put more 
information in an easy read format. 
 

 West Sussex County Council 
Communities 

The Communities team are writing a West 
Sussex digital inclusion strategy and 
involving its partners.  

The strategy will lead to fairer and more 
equal digital access. This will help 
improve education, employment, and 
health. The strategy will cover safety 
online. 

Funding from the Good Things Foundation 
led to 72 Tablets and Wi-Fi cards being 
delivered to people with a learning 
disability. This was called the Digital 
Lifeline Project organised by the Library 
service. 

Both the Prevention and Assessment 
Team and Library service can help 
support prevention activities and 
campaigns. The Community safety teams 
can help with safety and training. 
 

  

 

 

 

 

 

Page 32

Agenda Item 8
Appendix 2



5 
 

 Sussex Partnership NHS Foundation 
Trust 

The Trust is always looking at quality and 
safety. To do this the Trust uses NHS 
England standards for learning disability 
and autism. 

A standard is what has been agreed is 
good practice. For example, NICE 
Standards in Health services. 

The Trust is inspected by CQC – Care 
Quality Commission. 

The Trust uses the ‘Green Light’ audit 
tool. This helps them to make 
improvement plans. 

An audit is where you look for evidence 
that something good or bad is happening. 

The Trust collects data. They compare 
their data with other services for people 
with a learning disability to see if they are 
doing well. 

The Trust will start flagging learning 
disability on caseloads to check what 
reasonable adjustments are being made. 

They are using a new resource on how to 
support people with a learning disability 
using mental health services. The Trust 
will promote this to all staff.  

People with a learning disability are 
included in all of the Trusts 
transformation work. 
 
Transformation means a big change in 
services. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 33

Agenda Item 8
Appendix 2

https://idhekss.wordpress.com/2021/08/24/out-now-the-reasonably-adjusted-resource-supporting-people-with-a-learning-disability-using-adult-mental-health-services/


6 
 

All the Trusts clinical pathways take 
account of the needs of people with a 
learning disability. 

A clinical pathway is how patient care is 
organised. 

All people with a learning disability who 
die have a Sussex LeDeR review and this 
feedback into clinical pathways. 

The Trust has a physical health strategy 
that considers people with a learning 
disability. This is about keeping your body 
healthy. 

The Trust wants to increase the number 
of people with a learning disability who 
help them develop their plans. 
 

 Queen Victoria Hospital (QVH) 

QVH is a hospital specialising in plastic 
surgery. They also have a community unit 
for small injuries. 

Patients with a learning disability are 
supported by Queen Victoria hospital 
staff. Staff also have guidance from an 
Acute Learning Disability Nurse from 
Sussex Community. 

There is a flag on persons health record, 
and this helps QVH staff make reasonable 
adjustments. Staff also use the person’s 
‘Health Passport’ and can give out easy 
read information. 

For example, a young patient was very 
worried about coming for an ultrasound. 
The radiology team contacted their carer 
and organised for the patient to come 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 34

Agenda Item 8
Appendix 2



7 
 

straight to the clinical room. Here there 
was a poster greeting them and their 
favourite music playing in the 
background. They were quickly in and out 
with no hanging around. This was a good 
experience for them. 

QVH have safeguarding and patient 
experience meetings and guidance is 
changed if needed. 

QVH are members of the Sussex LeDeR 
group so that the learning from LeDeR 
reviews can be shared. 

Each year another hospital trust does a 
check called a ‘Peer Review’. This will 
start up again after Covid. 

QVH staff have learning disability and 
autism training. 
 

 Sussex Police 

The Police have internal and external 
Equality Networks that meet regularly. 
The Equality Network supports the Police 
to meet people’s needs and improve. 
 
Equality means everyone having the 
same chances to do what they can. Some 
people may need extra help to get the 
same chances. 

For example, feedback on Custody Suites 
by autistic people and people with 
sensory differences. The design plan was 
changed to paint the walls soft green 
rather than bright white. 

Help from external organisations also 
helps the Police improve. For example, 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 35

Agenda Item 8
Appendix 2



8 
 

hearing loops have now been put in all 
front counters, meeting, and training 
rooms. 

The police employ a lot of disabled people 
and carers, about 20% of staff. The police 
have a staff group called ‘Enable’.  

‘Enable’ deliver staff training and work 
with senior staff to improve the 
workplace. Enable give updates to the 
Police Equality, Diversity and Inclusion 
Board. 

Sussex Police have reached the top level 
(level 3) of the Disability Confident 
Employers Scheme. 

Sussex Police have a ‘Wellbeing Team’ to 
improve staff wellbeing and health.  

There are ‘Force Champions’ for both 
disability and carers who work to improve 
the way the police work. 

There is a new job called ‘Force Champion 
for Digital accessibility’ starting soon. 

Disability Awareness Training is provided 
across all teams. This training is made 
relevant to the work of each team. 

Sussex Police have the Pegasus Card 
scheme which is for people who have 
different communication needs. 
 

  

 

 

 

 

 

Page 36

Agenda Item 8
Appendix 2

https://www.sussex.police.uk/contact/af/contact-us/us/contact-us/sspegasus-scheme/pegasus-scheme/


9 
 

 West Sussex Fire and Rescue 

The Fire Service think that could do more 
to improving outcomes for people with a 
learning disability. 

Things which have improved are: 

• ‘Safe and Well’ visits - this is where 
you can ask for a free safety visit for 
advice on making your home safer. 

• Employing staff who focus only on 
diversity and equality. 

• A new ‘Protection, Prevention and 
Response’ group. This group meets 
monthly to look at how the Fire Service 
can improve its services to residents. 

• Fire safety packages are now in short 
videos and on Apps. 

To improve outcomes the Fire Service is 
going to: 

• Check resources are in easy read 
language. 

• Use a new database to check 
engagement with different groups 
including people with a learning 
disability. 

• Community Fire Safety Officers, who 
do not get called out on 
emergencies, will do ‘safe and well’ 
visits.  

 
The Fire Service is open to other ideas 
on how to do safety visits better. 

 
 Healthwatch 

We believe health and social care 
providers can best improve services by 
listening to people’s experiences. We will 
continue to work in this way.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 37

Agenda Item 8
Appendix 2



10 
 

We are speaking to the Council’s money 
people about what has changed and why 
people are being asked to pay so much 
more towards the cost of their Adult 
Social Care. Peoples’ stories are helping 
point out what is wrong and what needs 
to change. 

We plan to take part in a national 
campaign next year, to look at the 
Accessible Information Standard which 
supports health services to communicate 
in a better way with the people who use 
them.  

Healthwatch will listen to what people 
need and empower them to influence our 
work.  

Healthwatch will involve people with lived 
experience in our work and maintain 
relationships with local organisations / 
groups who work with them.  

Healthwatch will look at opportunities to 
meet with people and talk to them about 
what is important to them. 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 38

Agenda Item 8
Appendix 2



 

 

West Sussex Health and Wellbeing Board 

7 October 2021 

Sussex Wide Covid19 Voluntary, Community and Social Enterprise Review   

Report by Jess Sumner CEO Community Works and Chair of West Sussex 

Voluntary and Community Sector Infrastructure Alliance. 

 

Summary 

According to the NCVO UK Civil Society Almanac 2020, West Sussex has 2168 general 
charities with an income of £835m, with a further estimated 3143 ‘below the radar’ 

organisations.  

This review was produced on behalf of the Sussex Health and Care Partnership (SHCP) 
as part of NHS England funded work to explore VCSE Leadership and Integrated Care 
Structures (ICS) working collaboratively. The Review Oversight Group comprised 

representative members of SHCP, including local authorities and NHS organisations 
from across Sussex along with VCSE organisations. 

The review sought to explore and understand how the VCSE in Sussex responded to 

the COVID-19 pandemic and to draw our themes, learning and recommendations for 
future work.  

 

It calls on leaders from across the statutory and VCSE sectors “to build on lessons 
learnt during COVID-19, to strengthen existing partnerships, and build new ones, to 
support the health and wellbeing of communities across Sussex”. 

A range of different approaches were used as part of the review, including surveys 
and reports, 15 in-depth interviews, and 37 case studies. It provides a chance to 
reflect on local learning with health, public health and wider local authority partners 

and stakeholders, to act through experimentation to develop joined up approaches 
within our communities, and to widen local partnerships around the shared agenda of 

tackling inequalities at every level. 

Examples of achievements or impacts of COVID included;  

“Extend[ing] the help lines to seven days a week, to set-up a befriending service as 
well as a shopping and prescription delivery service whilst making welfare calls to 150 
customers and sending out activity packs to all daybreak customers within the first 

week of the pandemic” VAAC and Healthwatch West Sussex case study on Sage 
House, (p.56) 

“There were two distinct but inseparable aspects to their response to the pandemic: 

their organisational approach to infection control across internal services and their 
contribution to a systems leadership response in collaboration with cross-sector 

partners drawing on their homelessness pathways expertise.” Turning Tides (p.71) 

Page 39

Agenda Item 9

https://ncvo-app-wagtail-mediaa721a567-uwkfinin077j.s3.amazonaws.com/documents/ncvo-uk-civil-society-almanac-2020.pdf


“ In Horsham, for example, the loss of older volunteers meant the closure of the 

volunteer-run Community Transport Scheme. Although many new volunteers were 
available, not having the correct licences prevented them from driving during 

lockdown, which meant residents were unable to attend GP and hospital appointments 
and other essential services.” (p.18) 

The review found; 

• strong and effective collaborations between VCSE and statutory services 

developed at speed, identifying and coordinating responses to protect 
and support communities. 

• VCSE supported statutory services to provide early support to hyperlocal 

need – thanks to their unique characteristics, agility and connectedness 
to their communities 

• Covid-19 has provided an opportunity to demonstrate VCSE 
organisation’s value as innovators and partners in improving health and 

wellbeing and addressing wider inequalities. 
• There is an opportunity to involve the VCSE sector as a key system 

partner building on existing and new collaborations to improve health 

and address the wider multipliers of inequality. 
• Investment in maintaining existing partnerships and making new ones is 

essential to build the long-term sustainability and resilience of the sector. 
 

 

The survey can be found here; https://www.sussexhealthandcare.uk/wp-
content/uploads/2020/12/COVID-19-Sussex-wide-VCSE-review-full-report.pdf 

The recommendations in the report are intended to support leaders across statutory 

and VCSE sectors to advance existing and encourage new and wider collaborations 
that will sustain the early responses to Covid-19, to improve the population health 
and tackle wider inequalities across Sussex. 

We know many systems leaders are examining how they work collaboratively, and the  
recommendations can be used to reflect on progress and stimulate further discussion 
for future development. 

Recommendations are grouped under these opportunity headlines: 

Opportunity 1: Create more opportunities for VCSE and public sectors to work 

together at all levels of system transformation 

Opportunity 2: Engage as equal partners 

Opportunity 3: Make better use of data 

Opportunity 4: Strengthen preventative approaches to health and care 

Opportunity 5: Create accessible and diverse volunteering opportunities 

Recommendation(s) to the Board  

The Health and Wellbeing Board is asked to; 

(1) Note the report 

Page 40

Agenda Item 9

https://www.sussexhealthandcare.uk/wp-content/uploads/2020/12/COVID-19-Sussex-wide-VCSE-review-full-report.pdf
https://www.sussexhealthandcare.uk/wp-content/uploads/2020/12/COVID-19-Sussex-wide-VCSE-review-full-report.pdf


(2) This review calls on leaders from across the statutory, funding and VCSE 

sectors to build on lessons learnt, to strengthen existing partnerships, and build 
new ones, to support the health and wellbeing of communities across Sussex 

by:  

• Sharing this report within and across their organisations  

• Reflecting on the recommendations within the report  

• Seeking opportunities to promote/enhance/build upon the recommendations 

to strengthen future collaboration  
• Taking actions to progress recommendations in a collaborative and solution  

focussed way  

• Examining, within current planning processes and frameworks at all levels and  

places within the SHCP, how recommendations and associated actions are (or 

may be) supported and developed in order to embed collaborative working to 
address health and wider inequalities. 

 

1 Background and context 

 This review was produced on behalf of the Sussex Health and Care Partnership 

(SHCP)1 as part of NHS England funded work to explore VCSE Leadership and 
Integrated Care Structures (ICS) working collaboratively. The lead voluntary, 

community and social enterprise (VCSE) organisation in the NHS England bid 
was Community Works with Jane Lodge, Associate Director of Public 
Involvement, Sussex NHS Commissioners, also SHCP leadership. SHCP 

comprises 13 organisations across Sussex, the NHS and local councils, which 
work together to improve health and care.  

 This review both highlights and celebrates the extraordinary achievements of 

the Sussex Voluntary, Community and Social Enterprise Sector (VCSE) in its 
response to the coronavirus pandemic and presents recommendations for future 
collaboration and how it can capitalise on the learning acquired from that 

response. Through this research and discussions with, VCSE and public sector  
leaders across Sussex, we have taken a snapshot of the diversity of ways in 

which the VCSE has supported and protected communities and worked in 
partnership with health and local authority partners. We draw attention to the 
changing nature and flexible structure of the VCSE and the ways it can 

contribute to improving health, social and economic recovery in our localities as 
a key systems partner.  

2 Proposal details 

2.1 This review calls on leaders from across the statutory, funding and VCSE 

sectors to build on lessons learnt, to strengthen existing partnerships, and build 
new ones, to support the health and wellbeing of communities across Sussex 

by: - 

 
• Sharing this report within and across their organisations  

• Reflecting on the recommendations within the report  

• Seeking opportunities to promote/enhance/build upon the 

recommendations to strengthen future collaboration  
• Taking actions to progress recommendations in a collaborative and solution  

focussed way  
• Examining, within current planning processes and frameworks at all levels 

Page 41

Agenda Item 9



and  

places within the SHCP, how recommendations and associated actions are 
(or may be) supported and developed in order to embed collaborative 

working to address health and wider inequalities.  

 

3 Consultation, engagement and advice 

3.1 Organisations across Sussex provided the reports and summaries of data 
collected, we conducted interviews to inform and draft detailed case studies 

and spoke with VCSE and statutory sector colleagues to reflect upon the 
impact of the pandemic and how to preserve the collaborative relationships 

created. 

A range of different approaches were used as part of the review, including 
surveys and reports, 15 in-depth interviews, and 37 case studies.  
 

Contact: Jess Sumner, CEO of Community Works and Chair of West Sussex Voluntary 

and Community Sector Infrastructure alliance.  

Appendices Presentation Papers (Presentation attached) 

Background papers  
The survey can be found here; https://www.sussexhealthandcare.uk/wp-

content/uploads/2020/12/COVID-19-Sussex-wide-VCSE-review-full-report.pdf 

 

Page 42

Agenda Item 9

https://www.sussexhealthandcare.uk/wp-content/uploads/2020/12/COVID-19-Sussex-wide-VCSE-review-full-report.pdf
https://www.sussexhealthandcare.uk/wp-content/uploads/2020/12/COVID-19-Sussex-wide-VCSE-review-full-report.pdf


COVID-19 Sussex wide VCSE 
review (September 2020):

Stronger partnerships, stronger communities and a stronger 

voluntary, community and social enterprise sector

P
age 43

A
genda Item

 9
A

ppendix

https://www.sussexhealthandcare.uk/2020/12/review-highlights-key-role-of-voluntary-community-and-social-enterprise-sector-throughout-the-pandemic/


The review sought to:

• Identify how VCSE and statutory organisations 
and other partners (such as funders) can 
collaborate to inform and participate in 
emerging system changes.

• Capture the scale of change within VCSE 
organisations in order to meet the needs of 
their communities and service users during 
the Covid-19 crisis.

P
age 44

A
genda Item

 9
A

ppendix



• Provide insight into the impact of the VCSE 
response on communities/clients/service 
users.

• Identify the key changes VCSE organisations 
believe should be sustained and/or developed 
as we move into the next phase of the 
pandemic.

• Understand how VCSE leadership has 
functioned at system, place and 
neighbourhood level.

P
age 45

A
genda Item

 9
A

ppendix



P
age 46

A
genda Item

 9
A

ppendix



We found:

• strong and effective collaborations between 
VCSE and statutory services developed at speed, 
identifying and coordinating responses to protect 
and support communities.

• VCSE supported statutory services to provide 
early support to hyperlocal need – thanks to 
their unique characteristics, agility and 
connectedness to their communities

P
age 47

A
genda Item

 9
A

ppendix



• Covid-19 has provided an opportunity to 
demonstrate VCSE organisation’s value as 
innovators and partners in improving health and 
wellbeing and addressing wider inequalities.

• There an opportunity to involve the VCSE sector 
as a key system partner building on existing and 
new collaborations to improve health and 
address the wider multipliers of inequality.

P
age 48

A
genda Item

 9
A

ppendix



• Investment in maintaining existing partnerships 
and making new ones is essential to build the 
long-term sustainability and resilience of the 
sector.

We identified five opportunities that build on the 
findings, furthering cross-sector collaboration. 
These are aimed at leaders across health, local 
authority and VCSE sectors.

P
age 49

A
genda Item

 9
A

ppendix



Opportunity 1: Create more opportunities for VCSE 
and public sectors to work together at all levels of 
system transformation

• Recommendation 1.1: Commit to system-wide 
collaboration, recognising the VCSE as an equal partner

• Recommendation 1.2: Collaborate using shared 
principles for partnership working

• Recommendation 1.3: Support experimentation and 
celebrate success

P
age 50

A
genda Item

 9
A

ppendix



• Recommendation: 2.1: Explore opportunities for 
greater collaboration between funders

• Recommendation 2.2: Improve VCSE participation 
and capacity

• Recommendation 2.3: Reduce damaging competition 
and create more equal partnerships

Opportunity 2: Engage as equal partners

P
age 51

A
genda Item

 9
A

ppendix



Opportunity 3: Make better use of data

• Recommendation 3.1 Share data more openly 
and use this to understand community needs and 
set priorities

• Recommendation 3.2: Collate proportionate and 
purposeful data collection for the future

P
age 52

A
genda Item

 9
A

ppendix



Opportunity 4: Strengthen preventative 
approaches to health and care

Recommendation: 4.1 Support and invest in local solutions

Commissioners and funders have an opportunity to ensure 
continued delivery by helping local organisations − the 
‘first responders’ − to establish new approaches and 
pathways, and adapt services to increasing demand

P
age 53

A
genda Item

 9
A

ppendix



Opportunity 5: Create accessible and diverse 
volunteering opportunities

Recommendation 5.1: Develop cross-sector 
approaches to volunteer coordination and 
development

Recommendation 5.2: Increase and diversify 
volunteering opportunities

P
age 54

A
genda Item

 9
A

ppendix



• Sharing this report within and across their organisations
• Reflecting on the recommendations within the report
• Seeking opportunities to promote/enhance/build upon the 

recommendations to strengthen future collaboration
• Taking actions to progress recommendations in a collaborative and 

solution focussed way 
• Examining, within current planning processes and frameworks at all 

levels and places within the SHCP, how recommendations and 
associated actions are (or may be) supported and developed in order 
to embed collaborative working to address health and wider 
inequalities.

Calls on leaders to support the health 
and wellbeing of communities across 
Sussex by:

P
age 55

A
genda Item

 9
A

ppendix



T
his page is intentionally left blank



West Sussex Health and Wellbeing Board 

 
7 October 2021 

 
Joint Carer Strategy 2021-2026 
 

Report by:  Mark Greening, Commissioning Manager, Carers 
 

Summary 

Carers are twice as likely to suffer from poor health compared to the general 
population, primarily due to a lack of information and support, finance concerns, 

stress and social isolation (NHS England).  
 
Through supporting carers, many of whom are themselves older people living with 

long-term conditions, improvements are sought for both carer wellbeing and good 
health outcomes for those that they care for. 

 
Across the county, significant progress has been made in recent years in terms of 
reaching, assessing and supporting more carers than ever before. This progress has 

been achieved due to a whole system approach that has seen: 
 

• Carer identification and signposting as everyone’s responsibility 
• Carer wellbeing as being affected as much by their day to day experience of 

the health and social care system as the support they directly receive.  

 
The joint commissioning of carers support has been a long standing and successful 

arrangement. Through contracting and partnership initiatives over 30,000 known 
carers across the county are being supported. This very important work is keeping a 
lot of ‘referral traffic’ away from busy primary care and social work teams when 

demands on statutory care have arguably never been greater. The Covid Vaccination 
Programme for carers being one very recent example. 

 
We are beginning to better value and involve carers. Nevertheless there is more to do 
and practice can be patchy. A rejuvenated strategic commitment and partnership 

approach to deliver the ‘carers agenda’ has huge preventative value and sets a clear 
message to wider partners that carer support is still very much a joint strategic 

priority. 
 

Recommendation(s) to the Board  
 
The Health and Wellbeing Board is asked to: - 

 
(1) Review, comment on and endorse the ambitions and aims within the new Joint 

Carer Strategy 
(2) Monitor progress against the strategy and champion the goals and objectives. 
 

Relevance to Joint Health and Wellbeing Strategy 
 

There are unpaid carers of all ages therefore this work impacts on all HWB priority 
areas, Starting Well, Living and Working Well and Ageing Well.  

Page 57

Agenda Item 10

http://www2.westsussex.gov.uk/ds/cttee/hwb/jhws2019to2024.pdf


 

Carer support not only helps to address the health inequality experienced by many 
carers but good care by family and friends carers also helps to promote the health and 

wellbeing of so many of our residents and communities. 
 

The new strategy has reset goals and objectives that will help target resources 
effectively and encourage all stakeholders to work more cohesively together. It will also 
interface other key strategies, such as the new Joint Dementia Strategy, published last 

autumn, and the developing Strategy for Adult Social Care. 
 

1 Background and context 
 
1.1  The 120,000 plus family and friend carers in West Sussex make a critical 

contribution not only to their loved ones, but also to the NHS and social care 
systems who rely heavily on them.  

 
1.2  2015, West Sussex County Council in partnership with its Clinical 

Commissioning Group partners launched its first joint strategy for carers. ‘The 

West Sussex joint commitment to family and friend carers 2015-2020’ stated 
the main priority areas for health and social care in the identification and 

support of carers.  
 

1.3  West Sussex led the way in publishing it’s joint approach as subsequently, in 

May 2016, NHS England suggested that all partners on the local Health and 
Wellbeing Board sign a Memorandum of Understanding in order to demonstrate 

commitment to the duties of co-operation and promotion of wellbeing, as well 
as the wider commitment to identifying, recognising, assessing and supporting 
carers. 

 
1.4  Supporting and reporting progress on our joint commitment priorities has been 

the role of the Carers Strategic Partnership Group, chaired by the Joint 
Commissioner for Carers. It is a robust partnership, which includes charitable 
sector partners, and has representations from carers, through ‘Carer Voice’ 

channels. 
 

1.5  The key strategic objectives and outcomes required from carer support are: - 
 

• Meeting of statutory duties on local authority and NHS organizations brought 
about by the Care Act 2014 and the Children and Families Act 2014. 

• Promoting resilience to enable carers to carry on caring, through reducing 

risk factors and increasing carer knowledge and skill. 
• Improved health and wellbeing of the carer and, through enabling safe and 

better caring, improved health of the cared for. 
• Improved independence for both carers and cared for. 

 

1.6  In March 2020, The Health and Wellbeing Board agreed for a review and refresh 
of the carer strategy. The objective being, to: - 

 
• Provide a clear shared vision and strategic priorities for the delivery of 

support for carers for a further 5 years. 

• Enforce the identification and support of carers as everyone’s responsibility 
with a whole system approach. 

• Improve the co-ordination of resources and joint working of organisations 
supporting carers across West Sussex 

Page 58

Agenda Item 10



 

2 Proposal details 
 

2.1 The Health and Wellbeing Board is asked to: - 
 

• Review, comment on and endorse the ambitions and aims within the second 
Joint Carer Strategy 

• In turn, monitor progress against the strategy and be a champion for the 

ambitions and aims set out. 
 

3 Consultation, engagement and advice 
 
3.1   Every strategy is a journey. Upon receiving permission from the Health and 

Wellbeing Board for a strategy review and relaunch, the first step in the review 
was to undertake carer and wider stakeholder engagement, a task made 

difficult due the national lockdown. Nevertheless over 1,000 carers and young 
carers contributed to surveys (on-line and postal) and/or attended virtual focus 
group sessions. Over 200 professional stakeholders also contributed their 

views. 
 

3.2   Carer and professional engagement in relation to carer strategy is telling us 
that valued services are being delivered, which do make a positive difference, 
however there are gaps.  

 
3.3   Carers in West Sussex are calling for: - 

 
• Carers to be identified and valued 
• Supporting early identification of the caring role in order to recognise and 

value carer involvement as part of the solution in the planning process of 
the cared-for. 

• Greater Choice and Control to Help Maintain a Balanced Life and Care Well. 
• Carers and stakeholder surveyed called for better choice and control in how 

they as carers receive and access local services, which should include 

affordable respite options. Whilst carers from the focus groups emphasized 
the importance of being equipped with the right tools (learning and training) 

to care well.  
• Improved social opportunities for Young Carers  

• Stakeholders surveyed identified the main issue affecting Young Carers was 
missing out on socialising because of caring responsibilities.  

• Carers to be supported at each stage of the Caring Journey and have access 

to advocacy.  
• Carers and wider stakeholders wanted professionals (GP’s, NHS staff, 

educational staff etc.) and network partners to work together, to better 
support carers from the initial point of identification as a carer to life after 
caring.  

• Better engagement with seldom heard carer communities  
• The need to address service anxiety for some carers in certain minority 

group/s and achieve higher engagement rates with more carers from all 
communities. 

• To be connected 

• Helping to connect carers through peer to peer support (individual and in 
groups) is a key priority for all those surveyed, as was digital inclusion. 

Provision of emotional wellbeing services (i.e. counselling) and practical 

Page 59

Agenda Item 10



support (i.e. equipment) was also mentioned as a way of helping carers feel 

less isolated. 
• Reduced financial hardship  

• Carers want to be supported with information and benefits guidance to 
ensure they are receiving the benefits they are entitled to (i.e. Carers 

Allowance, PIP).  
• Support for working carers 
• The pandemic has plunged an unprecedented number of people into a new 

caring role, many of whom are juggling this with paid work. 
 

3.4   The engagement material has been combined with analysis of national research 
findings, all relevant national documentation (e.g. the NHS Long Term Plan) 
and best practice considerations. The revised strategy has set out to answer the 

question, In light of all this knowledge, what then should be done? 
 

3.5   The strategy is high level and the priorities within it apply whatever the 
financial envelope available and no growth in NHS or local authority funding is 
assumed. There is an expectation that all of our partners develop their own 

action plans and milestones and feedback progress via the Carers Strategic 
Partnership Group, which has a mix of statutory and voluntary sector 

membership.  
 

3.6   The new strategy has reset goals and objectives that will help target resources 

effectively and encourage all stakeholders to work more cohesively together. It 
will also interface other key strategies, such as the new Joint Dementia 

Strategy, published last autumn, and the developing Strategy for Adult Social 
Care. 

3.7   The aim is for publication, in Nov/Dec with an associated event that will: - 

 
• Signal that carers are still very much a joint strategic priority. 

• Speed up progress around development of a shared understanding, 
language and approach to carers by a range of partners. 

 

3.8   Following on from the publication the next piece of work, under the 
development of health and social care project workstream, will be to further 

understand the ‘vision of a good life’ for carers and their cared for.  
 

The Health and wellbeing Board is asked to support the strategy and its 
ambitions and aims. 
 

Contact: Mark Greening, Commissioning Manager, West Sussex County Council, 
07834678893, mark.greening@westsussex.gov.uk. 

 
Appendices 

 

1. Carers Strategy 2021-2026 
2. Presentation 

    
 
          

Page 60

Agenda Item 10



 

 

www.westsussex.gov.uk 

West Sussex Joint 
Carer Strategy     

2021-2026               

  
Developed in partnership by West Sussex County   
Council and NHS West Sussex Clinical Commissioning 
Group   

         
                      
        

           
           

                              

      
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                      

  

P
age 61

A
genda Item

 10
A

ppendix 1



 

 

www.westsussex.gov.uk 

2 | West Sussex Joint Carer Strategy 2021-2026 

 

Foreword 

With more people caring for relatives, friends and neighbours 

than ever before a system-wide coordinated response to identify 
and support carers and young carers is vital. This is important, 
not only for carers own wellbeing, but also for their family and 

friends whose own health depends on their carer keeping well 
and providing the best possible assistance. 

Unpaid, family and friend carers, both adult and children, are 
often the ones holding families and communities together and 
the right support at the right time during a person’s caring 

journey can make a huge difference. The County Council and the 
local NHS are resolved to make West Sussex a county that 

values carers and does not assume that carers are a given. This 
strategy sets out how we will support and encourage carers to 
be more proactive about their own wellbeing and, with partners, 

aim to build carer resilience and make the right interventions 
when carers are most in need. 

I hope you will find this strategy informative and of interest. I 
firmly believe that the more we engage and plan together in 
respect of family and friend carers the better outcomes we will 

deliver not only for carers of all ages but also for their loved 
ones they care for. 

Amanda Jupp Chair – Cabinet Member for Adults, West Sussex 
County Council  

 

Introduction 

This is West Sussex’s latest joint carer strategy. It builds on the 
significant progress made over recent years in identifying and 

improving the experience and outcomes of many family and 
friends carers.  

This document is a public commitment that sets out a clear 

direction of travel for how organisations will work together to 
identify and support family and friend carers across the county. 

The primary audience for the West Sussex Carer Strategy is the 
Health & Wellbeing Board, political leaders, officers, 
commissioners and providers responsible for its delivery. Care 

has been taken however to make the strategy as accessible as 
possible for residents. 

The coronavirus pandemic has created challenges, with its fast-
moving consequences for organisations and carers but 
nevertheless a robust engagement process has occurred to help 

identify priorities. The setting out of our broad ambitions and 
goals for the next five years will enable us and all of our 

partners to develop more detailed plans beneath it. 

We are incredibly grateful that over 1,000 carers, 132 young 
carers, and almost 200 stakeholders have shared their 

experiences of what caring is like. Thank you also to the many 
health and social care staff and other professionals who have 

contributed their views and opinions to the policy review. 

Finally, an acknowledgment to the charity Carer Support West 
Sussex and WSCC Young Carers (Family) Team who worked with 

P
age 62

A
genda Item

 10
A

ppendix 1



 

 

3 | | West Sussex Joint Carer Strategy 2021-2026 

 

carers by way of surveys and focus groups to help inform the 
new strategy.  

Where are we now? 

In 2020, a review of the Joint Commitment to Family and Friend 

Carers 2015-2020 took place. These are just a few of the 
achievements that were identified as part of the review: 

More carers are being reached than ever before.  

• Between 250 and 300 new adult carers are being 

registered every month with Carer Support West Sussex. 
Registrations have increased by over 65% in the past five 
years. Over 29,000 carers are now registered with a net 

increase of 11% year on year. 
• More young carers are receiving a service than before 

with referrals over last five years increasing by over 80%. 

More carers are being assessed.  

• In a typical month around 80 full statutory adult carer 
assessments are completed and over 200 lighter touch 

statutory assessments are achieved.  
• Young carers statutory assessments are routinely carried 

out for all young carers identified and referred for 

additional support 
• Carers of all ages are being supported in all areas of the 

county, as demonstrated by carer density mapping. 

A ‘Think Family’ perspective is more routinely being taken by 

practitioners on illness, disability or frailty. 

• Carer Support Workers are now based alongside NHS staff 
in every acute and community hospital. 

• New resources for schools, to help identify and support 
young carers, have been developed by the Young Carers 

(Family) Team and rolled out to all Primary and 
Secondary Schools. 

• More young carers than ever before are receiving a 
service than before with referrals over the last five years 
increasing by over 80%. New resources for schools, to 

support young carers have been rolled out. 
• The Carer Health Team, delivered by specialist trained 

health care professionals, has been recognized by NICE as 

an example of best practice.  

We are innovating. 

• The carer service offer has been regularly reviewed and 
improved. A Carer Discount Card was launched in 

February 2020, which is saving carers and young carers 
money, and encouraging socialisation. 5, 000 cards have 

been issued to date. 

We are leading by example. 

• WSCC is striving to be a carer friendly employer and has: 
✓ A policy covering carers who are Local 

Authority employees and their managers 

responsibilities. 
✓ A workplace careers’ network for employees 

who are carers. 
✓ Carer passports in operation. 

P
age 63

A
genda Item

 10
A

ppendix 1



 

 

www.westsussex.gov.uk 

4 | West Sussex Joint Carer Strategy 2021-2026 

 

There is, however, more to do.  

During 2020 and as part of the engagement with professional 

stakeholders, carer and young carers, the issues below were 
identified as the top challenges carers may have (or likely to 

have) experienced in West Sussex. It aligns closely with national 
research conclusions. 

• The negative impact of caring on physical health and 
mental health (including loneliness and isolation) being 
one of the single biggest issues expressed by carers of all 

ages.  
• More carers experiencing financial hardship. 

• Identification of carers, young carers, and recognition of 
carers’ expertise by healthcare services being generally 
seen as haphazard or poor. 

• Back-up for carers and suitable respite becoming more 
critical.  

• The increased need for isolated and stressed carers of all 
ages to come together for peer support and social 
activities.  

• Recognition and support for young carers in educational 
establishments being mixed and the need for social 

activities for this isolated and stressed cohort increasingly 
clear. 

In addition to the local engagement work secondary analysis 

was undertaken by reviewing existing data and information (i.e. 
surveys and reports) to enable a broader understanding of carer 

related issues, both locally and nationally.  

These included: 

• West Sussex Joint Commitment to Carers 2015 – 2020 

• NHS England, Commitment to Carers, 2014 
• Carers UK: Carers Week 2020 Research Report, June 

2020 Carers UK: Caring Behind Closed Doors 2020 
• Analysis of Covid-19 Public and Key Stakeholder Survey 

(Sussex NHS) 2020 
• Age and Digital Exclusion – GP Map 2020 
• Public Health Update: BAME communities  

• Carers UK State of Caring 2019 
• Survey of Adult Carers in England (SACE) 2018-19 

• Black, Asian and Minority Ethnic (BAME) Carers 2011 
• Do you want to reference the pan Sussex Carer 

Engagement survey 

• (Pan) Sussex Carers Partnership Engagement Report 2021 

This strategy is also based on the following legislation and 

relevant national policy and guidance: 

• The Care Act 2014 sections 6 & 7.  
• The NHS Act 2006 section 82.  

• Children Act 1989 section 27  
• Children Act 2004 section 10 

• Children and Families Act 2014 
• NHS Constitution and NHS Long Term Plan  
• The Long-Term Plan for the NHS  

• NICE Supporting Adult Carers guidelines  
 

P
age 64

A
genda Item

 10
A

ppendix 1



 

 

5 | | West Sussex Joint Carer Strategy 2021-2026 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Our priorities for the future 

The Joint Carers Strategy 2021-2026 states the main priority 
elements for health and social care over the next five years, in 
the support of adult carers and young carers. It lets local people, 

and organisations, know how our approach will be developing 
and is an invitation to join us in our efforts. There are to be six 

priority areas: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

P
age 65

A
genda Item

 10
A

ppendix 1



 

 

www.westsussex.gov.uk 

6 | West Sussex Joint Carer Strategy 2021-2026 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
Statutory duties/Prevention /Independence/Health equality 

Carers and Young Carers 

 

We will 

recognise, value, involve 
and support the role carers play 

including when they are patients themselves 

or are our colleagues 

Education and Training 

G
re

a
te

r re
c
o
g
n
itio

n
 

T
a
rg

e
te

d
 s

u
p
p
o
rt 

A
d
v
a
n
c
e
 e

q
u
a
lity

 o
f 

a
c
c
e
s
s
 

C
o
n
tin

g
e
n
c
y
 

p
la

n
n
in

g
 

L
im

it fin
a
n
c
ia

l 

h
a
rd

s
h
ip

  

R
e
d
u
c
e
 c

a
re

r 

is
o
la

tio
n
 

P
age 66

A
genda Item

 10
A

ppendix 1



 

 

7 | | West Sussex Joint Carer Strategy 2021-2026 

 

 

I feel totally cut out of the planning but relied upon to 

keep home life stable and the person I care for’ Carer 
Survey Respondent 

 
Carers will benefit from greater recognition and support.  

 
We will: 

‘I feel totally cut out of the planning but relied upon to keep 
home life stable and the person I care for’. 

Carer Survey Respondent 

Carers will benefit from greater recognition and support.  

We will: 
- Improve how health & social care identifies unpaid carers, of 

all ages, and strengthen support for them to address their 

individual physical and mental health needs. We will do this 
through introducing best-practice Quality Markers for 

primary care, developed with the Care Quality Commission 
(CQC), that highlight best practice in carer identification and 
support 

 
- Roll out ‘top tips’ for general practice (G.P.’s) for young 

carers which includes access to preventive health and social 
prescribing, and timely referral to local support services. 
 

- Monitor and support good practice by educational 
establishments to identify and support young carers. 

 
- Review and improve the training offer for professionals 

relating to carer and young carer identification and best 
practice. 

 

‘Accessing information about services that would be 

appropriate for my family members based on our religious 
belief and cultural needs’. Carer Survey Respondent 

 

- Through consultation, support a greater number of 
professionals to recognise and support young carers. 

 
- Encourage the national adoption of Carer's Passports, which 

identify someone as a carer and enable staff to involve them 

in a patient’s care.  These will be complemented by 
developments to electronic health records that allow people 

to share their caring status with healthcare professionals 
wherever they present. 
 

I’m very young and try to do my best’ Young Carer 
Survey Respondent    

‘I’m very young and try to do my best’ Young Carer Survey 
Respondent    

We will better target resources to support carers at each 

stage of the caring journey in order to best prevent carer 
breakdown and enable best care. 

P
age 67

A
genda Item

 10
A

ppendix 1



 

 

www.westsussex.gov.uk 

8 | West Sussex Joint Carer Strategy 2021-2026 

 

We will: 
- Work together (GP’s, Health and Social Care staff, 

educational staff etc.) and network partners (local and 
national) to better support carers from the initial point of 

identification as a carer to life after caring. 
 

- Produce Young Carer guidance and resources for GP 
Practices to help identify and then support the health needs 
of Young Carers. 

 
- Maintain high quality assessment/support planning and    

review case worker capacity in order to better target 
intervention before carer breakdown/crisis.  

‘Accessing information about services that would be 

appropriate for my family members based on our religious 
belief and cultural needs’. Carer Survey Respondent 

We will continue to identify and support carers from 
vulnerable communities.  

Carers from a minority background (3% of carer survey 

respondents) want simple, inclusive and appropriate support so 
they may access timely information and guidance.  Our 

challenge is to both support carers close to where they live and 
where they access services they need, in a manner that works 
for them.  

We will  
- Work with Carers, communities and our partners to support 

areas in the geographical, cultural and faith-based 

communities they live and work by working with those 
communities and people that have the most influence over 

carer support. 
 

- Provide specialist services that meet the needs of all carers 
whatever their caring circumstances. 

We will ensure that more adult carers understand the 
out-of-hours options that are available to them and have 
appropriate back-up support in place for when they need 

it.  

We will: 

- Review and relaunch the West Sussex Carer Emergency 
Contact Card Scheme and 1,000’s more carers, of all ages, 
will benefit from contingency planning conversations. More 

carers will benefit from similar conversations with the NHS 
and have their plans included in Summary Care Records, so 

that professionals know when and how to call those plans 
into action when they are needed. 

We will try and limit financial hardship as a result of 

caring 

We will: 

- Pilot a dedicated benefits adviser role, so that adult carers 

can be better supported with information and benefits 
guidance to ensure they are receiving the benefits they are 

entitled to (i.e. Carers Allowance, Personal Independence 
Payment). 

  

P
age 68

A
genda Item

 10
A

ppendix 1



 

 

9 | | West Sussex Joint Carer Strategy 2021-2026 

 

- Continue to support working carers through influencing local 
employers and offer increased support to carers wanting to 

return to work or re-train.      

 
- Continue to support families where there is a young carer to 

maximise their incomes. 
 

‘I don’t get to play with my friends and we don’t have money 
to do hobbies’. ‘I don’t get to play with my friends, and we 

don’t have money to do hobbies’. Young Carer Survey 
Respondent      
           

‘As a carer I need time away from the person that I care for 
as they live in my house. Affordability is an issue here’. 

Stakeholder Respondent 

 

 

We will reduce adult and young carer isolation 

We will: 

- Ensure that 1,000’s of adult carers are helped to become 
digitally connected. 
 

- Maintain some carer peer support groups that enable on-line 
connection for those unable to travel or leave their loved 

one, to attend face to face carer support groups. 

 
- Ensure that more carers of all ages benefit from Technology 

Enabled Care.  
 

- Review adult carer respite provision with a particular focus 
on coverage and affordability. 

 
- Develop social opportunities and group provision for young 

carers missing out on childhood opportunities because of 

caring responsibilities 

MONITORING DELIVERY AND IMPACT ACROSS 

THE PATHWAY 

West Sussex County Council and the NHS plan to monitor the 
progress being made with the goals set out above. The Carers 
Strategic Partnership Group will lead on the delivery of the 

strategy, review progress, identify gaps and work together to 
find solutions.  

This multi-partnership strategic group, chaired by the Joint 
Commissioner for Carers, will report to The Health and Wellbeing 
Board.  

It is vital that we assess whether our efforts are making a 
demonstrable difference to the experience of carers and young 

carers. We will therefore actively involve carers of all ages in 
helping us achieve the aspirations set out. 

To get involved, or find out more, contact either: 

P
age 69

A
genda Item

 10
A

ppendix 1



 

 

www.westsussex.gov.uk 

10 | West Sussex Joint Carer Strategy 2021-2026 

 

Carer Support West Sussex at info@carerssupport.org.uk (Carer 
Response Line on 0300 028 8888) or the Joint Commissioner for 

Carers at 

CarerCommissioning@westsussex.gov.uk 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                            

P
age 70

A
genda Item

 10
A

ppendix 1

mailto:info@carerssupport.org.uk
tel:03000288888
mailto:CarerCommissioning@westsussex.gov.uk


Joint Carer Strategy 2021-2026

Mark Greening, Carers Commissioner/Sonia Mangan, CEO, 
Carer Support West Sussex 

October 2021

P
age 71

A
genda Item

 10
A

ppendix 2



Joint Carers Strategy 2021 -2026

• Provides a clear direction of travel for carer 
identification and support in West Sussex. 

• It has been developed via a robust approach, with 
engagement with carers of all ages & wider 
stakeholders.

• By also considering and incorporating statutory 
guidance, key policy documentation and national 
research an overarching six pillared approach to tackle 
the issues carers face has been devised.

P
age 72

A
genda Item

 10
A

ppendix 2



Carer Engagement
169 survey responses to our Stakeholder Survey

132 survey responses to our Young Carer Engagement Survey 

1000 plus survey responses to our adult Carer Engagement 
Survey (915 online and 85 postal) 

5 Carer focus groups hosted (in person and online) with 
participation from 34 carers

144 respondents to a follow up survey testing the initial 
recommendations

P
age 73

A
genda Item

 10
A

ppendix 2



Statutory duties/Prevention /Independence/Health equality

Carers and Young Carers

We will
recognise, value, involve

and support the role carers play
including when they are patients themselves 

or are our colleagues

Education and Training

G
re

a
te

r 
re

c
o
g
n
itio

n

T
a
rg

e
te

d
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

A
d
v
a
n
c
e
 e

q
u
a
lity

 
o
f a

c
c
e
s
s

C
o
n
tin

g
e
n
c
y
 

p
la

n
n
in

g

L
im

it fin
a
n
c
ia

l 
h
a
rd

s
h
ip

 

R
e
d
u
c
e
 c

a
re

r 
is

o
la

tio
n

P
age 74

A
genda Item

 10
A

ppendix 2



Benefits

• Further development of a 
shared clear, consistent 
language and approach to the 
delivery of support to Carers.

• Promote better working 
together between Adult Social 
Care services, NHS 
commissioners, providers and 
third sector organisations that 
support Carers of all ages.

• Carers’ improved health and 
wellbeing; thereby supporting 
the aspirations of the Joint 
Health and Wellbeing Strategy.

P
age 75

A
genda Item

 10
A

ppendix 2



Strategy delivery

• Following publication, under the 
development of health and social care 
project workstream, further understanding 
will be gained about  the ‘vision of a good life’ 
for carers and their cared for. 

• The Carers Strategic Partnership Group will 
work collaboratively on carer, and young 
carer support towards the aim and goals set 
out. It is a well represented group including 
the charitable sector and the ‘Carer Voice’.

• NHS England will be able to provide support 
in respect of any objectives  that dovetail 
with the NHS Long Term Plan e.g. 
contingency planning and ‘top tips’ for 
general practice in respect of young carers.

P
age 76

A
genda Item

 10
A

ppendix 2



Thank you

mark.greening@westsussex.gov.uk;

sonia.mangan@carerssupport.org.uk;

P
age 77

A
genda Item

 10
A

ppendix 2

mailto:mark.greening@westsussex.gov.uk
mailto:sonia.mangan@carerssupport.org.uk


T
his page is intentionally left blank



  

West Sussex Health and Wellbeing Board 

7 October 2021 

Better Care Fund Monitoring Q1 2021/22 

Report by Chris Clark, Joint Strategic Director of Commissioning, West 

Sussex Clinical Commissioning Group and West Sussex County Council 

 

Summary 

This paper provides a summary of the planning requirements as understood at the 
time of writing, funding sources, and expenditure plan for the West Sussex Better 

Care Fund in 2021/22, along with the regular monitoring of performance against the 4 
national metrics for Quarter 1 2021/22. 

Note that, at the time of writing the full national planning guidance for the Better Care 
Fund is pending publication. 

Recommendation(s) to the Board  

The Health and Wellbeing Board is asked to; 

(1) Note the West Sussex Better Care Fund funding sources, and proposed 
expenditure plan, and planning requirements as known at the time of writing. 

(2) Note the West Sussex performance against the national BCF metrics at Q1 and 

2021/22. 

 

Relevance to Joint Health and Wellbeing Strategy 

 

The Better Care Fund supports partnership working across the West Sussex Health 

and Social Care system. The funded schemes include multi-disciplinary teams 
delivering proactive community-based care, services for carers, social prescribing, and 
a broad range of adult social care services. 

1 Background 

1.1    The Better Care Fund (BCF) is a programme spanning both the NHS and local 

government which seeks to join-up health and care services, so that people can 
manage their own health and well-being, and live independently in their 
communities for as long as possible. 

1.2    The Better Care Fund (BCF) is one of the government’s national vehicles for 

driving health and social care integration. It requires clinical commissioning 
groups (CCGs) and local government to agree a joint plan, owned by the Health 

and Wellbeing Board (HWB). These are joint plans for using pooled budgets to 

Page 79

Agenda Item 13

http://www2.westsussex.gov.uk/ds/cttee/hwb/jhws2019to2024.pdf


support integration, governed by an agreement under section 75 of the NHS Act 

(2006). 

2 Better Care Fund Planning Requirements 2021/22 

2.1 The Better Care Fund Policy Framework 2021 to 2022 was published on 19 
August. This document declares minimal change for the BCF in 2021/22 

although there are new metrics and a particular focus on discharge. 

2.2 General: 

• Full planning round in 2021 to 2022 – Potentially an 8-week planning round 

• National conditions for a joint agreed plan, minimum social care spend, and 
minimum NHS-commissioned out-of-hospital services retained 

2.3 Discharge: 

• BCF Plan to include ‘an agreed approach for embedding the current discharge 

policy in relation to how BCF funding will support this.’ 

• Under National Condition 4, areas are required to agree a joint plan to deliver 
health and social care services that support improvement in outcomes for 

people being discharged from hospital, including the implementation of the 
hospital discharge policy, and continued implementation of the High Impact 
Change Model for Managing Transfers of Care 

• Plans should describe how HWB partners will work with providers to improve 

outcomes for a range of discharge measures, covering both reductions in the 
time someone remains in hospital, and effective decision making and integrated 

community services to maximise a person’s independence once they leave 
hospital. 

• As the accountable body for the NHS element of the BCF, NHS England will 

focus its oversight on approval and permission to spend from the CCG ring-
fenced contribution particularly on plans linked to National Condition 4 

2.4 Metrics: 

• Non-elective admissions metric is replaced by a metric on avoidable admissions. 

Systems will be asked to set expectations for reductions in avoidable 
admissions (classified as the rate of emergency admissions for ambulatory 
sensitive conditions) from quarter 3. 

• In 2021 to 2022, performance on discharge at a HWB footprint will be 

monitored using data collected from hospital systems through the NHS 
Secondary Uses Service (SUS), and used to inform support offers to systems 

• BCF Plan to focus on improvements to the following key metrics:  

o Reducing length of stay in hospital, measured through the percentage of 

hospital inpatients who have been in hospital for longer than 14 and 21 
days,  

o Improving the proportion of people discharged home using data on 

discharge to their usual place of residence 

Page 80

Agenda Item 13



• Metrics for admissions to residential and care homes, and effectiveness of 

reablement retained. 

• Areas to agree how BCF spending will improve performance against BCF 
national metrics 

3 West Sussex Better Care Fund Income and Expenditure Plan 2021/22 

3.1   Details of the Better Fund funding sources and planned expenditure, as 

reviewed and agreed by the West Sussex County Council and West Sussex CCG 
BCF finance leads and Joint Commissioning Strategy Group are given in 
Appendix 1. .  

 
3.2   This expenditure plan meets the requirement to pool the CCG Minimum 

Contribution, the minimum spend requirements of £26,719,007 for social care, 
and the minimum spend requirements for £18,157,024 for CCG-commissioned 
out of hospital services.    

4 Better Care Fund Performance Q1 2021/22 

4.1   Details of the Better Fund metrics performance for Q1 are given in Appendix 2. 

Metrics targets for 2021/22 are set as part of the formal planning process. 
 
 

Contact: Paul Keough, Better Care Fund Manager, West Sussex Clinical 
Commissioning Group and West Sussex County Council, 07920 817577, 

paul.keough@nhs.net 

Appendices Presentation Papers  

Appendix 1: Better Care Fund Income and Expenditure Plan 2021/22 

Appendix 2: Better Care Fund Metrics Report Q1 2021/22 

Background Papers 

https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/better-care-fund-policy-framework-2021-to-
2022 

 

Page 81

Agenda Item 13

mailto:paul.keough@nhs.net
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/better-care-fund-policy-framework-2021-to-2022
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/better-care-fund-policy-framework-2021-to-2022


This page is intentionally left blank



 

West Sussex Better Care Income and Expenditure Plan 2021/22 
1. BCF Allocations and Pooled Fund 2021/22 (Assumes no change to grant levels) 

 Committed Funding 
Capital Funding  

Disabled Facilities Grant  £9,414,970 
Total Capital Funding £9,414,970 

Revenue Funding  
NHS West Sussex CCG (Assumes 5.3% increase in minimum 
CCG Contribution) 

£63,894,567 

West Sussex County Council Additional Contribution (WSCC 
additional contribution to Carers Services increased) 

£1,922,100 

Improved Better Care Fund  £20,006,674 
Total Revenue Funding £,85,779,541 

Total Better Care Fund Budget £95,238,311 

 
  

Page 83

Agenda Item 13
Appendix 1



2. West Sussex Better Care Fund Planned Expenditure 2021/22  

 

Committed Funding 
Scheme  

Scheme 
Number 

West Sussex 
CCG 

West Sussex 

County 
Council 

TOTAL 

Disabled Facilities Grant 1 − £9,414,970 £9,414,970 

Maintaining (Protecting) 

Social Care 

2 £17,697,807 − £17,697,807 

IBCF: Meeting adult social 

care needs 

3a − £5,170,674 £5,170,674 

IBCF: Reducing pressure 

on the NHS, including 
supporting more people 
to be discharged from 

hospital when ready 

3b − £8,134,000 £8,134,000 

IBCF: Ensuring that the 

local social care provider 
market is supported 

3c − £3,399,000 £3,399,000 

Winter Pressures Grant 3d − £3,303,000 £3,303,000 

Proactive Care 4 £7,165.104 − £7,165,104 

Communities of Practice 5 £4,304,099 − £4,304,099 

Better Care Fund  
Programme Support 

6 £234,313 − £234,313 

Responsive Services 7 £17,812,048 − £17,812,048 

Social Prescribing 8 £502,600 − £502,600 

Stroke Recovery Service 9 £263,342 − £263,342 

Combined Placement and 

Sourcing Team (CCG 
contribution) 

10 £454,595 − £454,595 

Community  EOL 
Admission Avoidance 

11 £420,000 − £420,000 

Care Act Initiatives 12 £2,168,200 − £2,168,200 

Carers Services 13 £1,946,000 £1,922,100 2 £3,868,100 

Technology Enabled Care 14 £878,600 − £878,600 

Community Equipment 15a £4,186,900 − £4,186,900 

Community Equipment 
(Health) 

15b £5,860,959 − £5,860,959 

  £63,894,567 £31,343,744 £95,238,311 

 

Please Note: 
This plan meets the minimum spend requirements of £26,719,007 for social care, and 
£18,157,024 for CCG-commissioned out of hospital services.    

  

Page 84

Agenda Item 13
Appendix 1



3. West Sussex Better Care Fund Summary Descriptions for New/Expanded 

Schemes for 2021/22 
 

3.1   Scheme 9 – Stroke Recovery Service (CCG): This scheme provides an integrated 
Six Month Review Service with Stroke Recovery Support services to meet national 
standards and support the ambitions of the NHS Long Term Plan in respect of stroke. It 

also includes a Six Month Review service offering a comprehensive, person-centred six 
month review to all stroke survivors. The scheme is expanded for 2021/22 to include 

the service in the former Coastal West Sussex are in addition to that in the north of the 
county. 

 

3.2   Scheme 10 – Combined Placement and Sourcing Team (CCG funding 
contribution): The Combined Placement and Sourcing Team (CPST) forms a single 

point of referral, triage and tracking teams for all patients leaving hospital on pathways 
1-3 for Health and Social Care. This is accessed through the ‘IDT/Discharge Hub’ at 
each acute hospital. CPST also supports community referrals and will act as the central 

referral point for the wider Community Response and Reablement service supporting 
both discharge and admissions avoidance. 

 
3.3   Scheme 11 – Community EOL Admission Avoidance (CCG): This scheme supports 

a demonstrable increase in the numbers of patients at the end of life who require an 

urgent community response when the patient’s wish is to remain at home, to ensure a 
timely and personalised holistic approach to prevent avoidable admissions. Initiated 

following criteria assessment, it supports an up to 48 hour package of care provided  
by the hospices MDT (includes nurses, allied health professionals, advanced nurse 
practitioners and access to specialist medical advice and support) tailored to the 

situation. The scheme provides additional funding to the hospices for activity and 
support of patients above their core bed capacity/ baseline services. It also contributes 

to keeping hospices as part of the wider strategic system.   
 
Contact: Paul Keough, Better Care Fund Manager, West Sussex Clinical Commissioning 

Group and West Sussex County Council, 07920 817577, paul.keough@nhs.net 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 

Page 85

Agenda Item 13
Appendix 1

mailto:paul.keough@nhs.net


This page is intentionally left blank



West Sussex Better Care Fund Metrics Performance – Q1 2021/22 

 
1. Total Non-Elective Spells (Specific Acute) – All Ages 
 

Latest data 

available:  

N/A  Vs same period 

last year: 

N/A  Vs 2020/21 plan: N/A 

 

 
 
Source: SUS TnR / NHS England 
 

1.1    This measure is discontinued as a BCF metric for 2021/22 and a new Avoidable 
Admissions metric will be effective from Q3 2021/2022 

 
2. Delayed Transfers of Care (Delayed Days) 

 

Latest data 
available: 

N/A  Vs same period 
last year: 

N/A  Vs 2019/20 plan: N/A 

 

 
Source: NHS England Statistics 

  
2.1 Targets for Delayed Transfers of Care (DToC) were suspended effective 19th March due 

to Covid-19. This suspension is now permanent and a metric based on the revised 
hospital discharge policy will be effective from Q3 2021/22.     

  

0

1000

2000

3000

4000

5000

6000

7000

8000

9000

10000

Total Non Elective Spells (Specific Acute)                       
Metric Discontinued

Plan Actual

1000

1500

2000

2500

3000

3500

4000

4500

5000

Delayed Transfers of Care - Metric Suspended

Series1 Series2

Page 87

Agenda Item 13
Appendix 2



3. Permanent Admissions to Nursing and Residential Homes (per month) 

 

Latest data 
available June-21: 

25.8  Vs same period 
last year June-20: 

40.6  Vs 2020/21 plan 
per month: 

N/A 

 

 
 

Source: In-year Data Collection WSCC Performance & Intelligence Team (National Metric is 
collected annually, reporting 6 months after year-end.)  

 
3.1   Performance remains impacted by the effects of Covid; therefore the data is not 

representative of normal patterns of admission. We have seen a significant reduction in 

the proportion of customers in pay in residential settings, in comparison to non-
residential. Adult Social care are continuing to work towards reducing new admissions 

to residential setting, while increasing non-residential options. This is starting to take 
effect; however, the average cost of placements is increasing. 

 

4. Percentage of Older People at Home 91 Days after Discharge into 
Reablement/Rehabilitation Services 

 

Latest data 
available June-21: 

71.0%  Vs same period 
last year June-20: 

70.5%  Vs 2020/21 plan: N/A 

 

 
 

Source: In-year Data Collection WSCC Performance & Intelligence Team (National Metric is 
collected annually, reporting 6 months after year-end.) 

 
4.1   Performance has seen a slight rise at Q4 20/21 and year-end analysis has resulted in 

revision to the figures reported for previous quarters of the current year.  This indicator 

is under review by ADASS. If we are unable to contact the customer or the customer 
does not respond, then the guidance requires us to record these as not at home. Work 

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

70

Residential Admissions (per year) 24 months to June 
2020/21

Plan Actual

10.0%

30.0%

50.0%

70.0%

90.0%

Q2 19/20 Q3 19/20 Q4 19/20 Q1 20/21 Q2 20/21 Q3 20/21 Q4 20/21 Q1 21/22

Reablement (% 65+ at home 91+ days post-discharge) 24 
months to Q1 2021/22

Plan Actual

Page 88

Agenda Item 13
Appendix 2



is underway to consider whether there are more effective ways of using this measure 

through SE ADASS networks.  West Sussex has a number of reablement offers that 
contribute to supporting independence, these include both home-based reablement and 

bed-based provision.  A local based measure looking at these outcomes would be more 
reflective of the local picture. 

 

5. Performance Targets and Data Collection 

 
5.1    Due to the delayed publication of planning guidance for 2021/22, including details of 

new metrics to replace Non Elective Admission and Delayed Transfers of Care, no 
targets have yet been set.  

 

Contact: Paul Keough, Better Care Fund Manager, West Sussex Clinical Commissioning 
Group and West Sussex County Council, 07920 817577, paul.keough@nhs.net 

 

Page 89

Agenda Item 13
Appendix 2

mailto:paul.keough@nhs.net


This page is intentionally left blank



07-Oct-21 27-Jan-22

Items Lead Contact
Learning Disabilities Awareness Mike S Smith √

Sussex Wide Covid19 VCSE Review Jess Sumner √

New Carers Strategy 21-26 Mark Greening √

Annual Reports/Actions

Terms of Reference Erica Keegan √

Joint Health and Wellbeing Strategy Annual Review Alison Challenger
Safeguarding Adults Annual Report Annie Callanan and 

Julie Phillips
Safegaurding Childrens Annual Report Lucy Butler
West Sussex Health Protection Grps Annual Report Director Public Health
Public Health Annual Report Director Public Health
HealthWatch Annual Report Sally Dartnell
Pharmacutical Needs Assessment Aloisia Katsande
Joint Strategic Needs Assessment Alison Challenger √

Standing Items

HWB - Local Outbreak Engagement Board Alison Challenger √ √

HWB - Children First Board                                    Cllr Jacquie 

Russell/Lucy Butler
√ √

Better Care Fund Monitoring Paul Keogh/Chris Clark √ √

Public Forum Chairman √ √

Public Health Update Alison Challenger √

ICS/STP  Place Based Plan Chris Clark/Keith 

Hinkley
√ √

Date of HWB Meeting 07-Oct-21 27-Jan-22

Venue MS Teams TBC

Health and Wellbeing Board (HWB) Work Plan 21/22
Meeting Date

P
age 91

A
genda Item

 14



T
his page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	4 Minutes
	7 West Sussex COVID-19 Local Outbreak Engagement Board
	8 Learning Disability Awareness Report
	Appendix 1 -     Learning Disability Awareness Report
	Appendix 2 - Learning Disability Partnership Board Report
	Introduction
	Health and Social Care 
	1. Physical health
	Neurodevelopmental Pathway
	In-patient mental health admissions and length of stay.
	All health and social care workers are trained.
	People are offered information and letters in different formats.
	West Sussex County Council Communities
	Sussex Partnership NHS Foundation Trust
	Queen Victoria Hospital (QVH)
	Sussex Police
	West Sussex Fire and Rescue
	Healthwatch


	9 Sussex Wide Covid19 Voluntary, Community and Social Enterprise Sector  Review
	Appendix - Presentation

	10 Joint Carer Strategy 2021-2026
	Appendix 1 - Carers Strategy  2021-26
	Appendix 2 - Presentation

	13 Better Care Fund Monitoring Quarter 1 2021-22
	Appendix 1 - Better Care Fund Income and Expenditure Plan 2021-22
	Appendix 2 - Better Care Fund Metrics Report Quarter 1 2021-22

	14 Work Programme

